
LE SUEUR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
MEETING AGENDA
December 18, 2018

1. 4:30 p.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda
a. RE: December 11, 2018 Minutes and Summary Minutes
b. RE: Gambling Application for Blue Earth County Chapter of Minnesota Pheasants, 

Inc.

2. 4:35 p.m. Claims (5 min)

3. 4:40 p.m. Human Services (35 min.)

4. 5:15 p.m. Jeff Neisen, IT Director (10 min)
a. RE: IT Purchase-- Software/Hardware Justice Center 

5. 5:25 p.m. Human Resources (5 min)

6. 5:30 p.m. Chuck Retka (5 min)
a. RE: Ney Snowmobile Trail

7. 5:35 p.m. Amy Beatty, Environmental Programs Specialist (5 minutes)
a. Household Hazardous Waste Agreement with Scott County

8. 5:40 p.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator
a. RE: Highway Items
b. RE: Finley Engineering Proposal and Contract
c. RE: Le Sueur County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update for 2019
d. RE: End of Year Board Action Items
e. RE: Future Meetings

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 1 / 112



9. Commissioner Committee Reports

10. 5:50 p.m. Public Hearing on Proposed Changes to User Fees for 2019 

11. 6:00 p.m. 2019 Budget - Levy Public Hearing 

12. 6:15 p.m. Approve 2019 Levy

13. 6:20 p.m. Approve 2019 Budget

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 2 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 1

4:30 p.m. Agenda and Consent Agenda

RE: December 11, 2018 Minutes and Summary Minutes

RE: Gambling Application for Blue Earth County Chapter of Minnesota Pheasants, Inc.

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 3 / 112



Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting 
December 11, 2018 

 
The Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners met in regular session on Tuesday, December 11, 
2018 at 9:00 a.m. in the Courthouse at Le Center, Minnesota.  Those members present were: Steve 
Rohlfing, Lance Wetzel and John King. Brent Christian and Darrell Pettis were also present. Joe 
Connolly and Dave Gliszinski were excused.  
 
On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
agenda for the business of the day. 
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
consent agenda: 

● Approved the November 27, 2018 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes 
● Approved the November 29, 2018 County Board Minutes and Summary Minutes 
●Approved November 2018 Transfers 
 

On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
Human Services claims: 
 
Financial:             $ 83,752.18 
Soc Services:      $ 92,933.52 
  
Tyler Luethje, Parks Director appeared before the Board with one item for approval. 
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following Parks Board members for 4 year terms through January 2023: 
 
District Two Charles Richter 
District Four Mark Volkenant 
District Five:  Larry Maruska 
 
Cindy Westerhouse, Human Resources appeared before the Board with several items for approval. 
 
On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
Memorandum of Agreement to grant the leave of absence request for Nick Greenig from his 
position as Patrol Sergeant in the Sheriff’s Office, effective January 8, 2019. 
  
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
grant regular status to David Yates, Assistant County Attorney in the County Attorney’s, 
effective December 4, 2018.  
 
On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
accept the resignation from Michaela Erickson, part time Home Health Aide in Public Health, 
effective December 11, 2018.  
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 4 / 112



On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
hire Julie Brockway as a full time Public Health Nurse in Public Health as a Grade 11, Step 7 at 
$30.27, effective January 2, 2019.  
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
grant a personal leave request from employee 1638, effective December 6, 2018.  
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
promote Laura Quickle, full time Compliance Specialist, Grade 4, Step 6 at $19.46 per hour, to a 
full time Drug Court Coordinator in Drug Court, Grade 13, Step 4 at $30.60 per hour, effective 
December 10, 2018.  
 
On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
post and advertise for a full time Network Administrator in the Information Technology 
Department as a Grade 10, Step 8 at $29.57.  
 
On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
accept the resignation request from Anna Schwichtenberg full time Office Support Specialist, Sr. 
in Human Services, effective December 20, 2018. 
  
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
post and request the merit list for a full time Office Support Specialist, Sr. in Human Services, 
Grade 4, Step 4 at $18.12 per hour.  
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
promote Emily O’Brien, Sheriff Administrative Assistant in the Sheriff’s Office, Grade 6, Step 6 
at $21.86 per hour, to a full time Office Manager/Evidence Coordinator, Grade 9, Step 5 at 
$25.13 per hour, effective December 24, 2018. 
 
On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved to 
post and advertise for a full time Sheriff Administrative Assistant in the Sheriff’s Office, Grade 
6, Step 4 at $20.35 per hour. 
 
Holly Kalbus, Environmental Resources Specialist appeared before the Board with one item for 
approval. 
 
On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the County Administrator to sign the following Resolution for Aquatic Invasive 
Species Prevention Aid: 
 
WHEREAS, 2014 Session Law Chapter 308 enacted by the Legislature provides Minnesota 
Counties a County Program Aid grant for Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) prevention. The 
amount is designated by the number of watercraft trailer launches and the number of watercraft 
trailer parking spaces within each county. Le Sueur County received $148,373 for the year 2018 
and will receive approximately $149,119 each following year (unless otherwise revised by the 
State due to a change in the number of launches and/or parking spaces for each county), and  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 5 / 112



 
WHEREAS, the legislation requires that Le Sueur County must establish, by resolution or 
through adoption of a plan, guidelines for the use of the proceeds, which are to prevent the 
introduction or limit the spread of AIS at all access sites within the county, and  
 
WHEREAS, the county may appropriate the proceeds directly or may use any portion of the 
proceeds to provide funding for a Joint Powers Board or cooperative agreement with another 
political subdivision, the Soil and Water Conservation District or lake associations located in the 
county.  
 
WHEREAS, the county must submit a copy of its guidelines for use of the proceeds for the 
upcoming year to the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources by December 31 of the 
current year, and  
 
WHEREAS, AIS is one of the three priority concerns identified in the 2013-2023 State Water 
plan. A stated goal in the Water Plan is to provide leadership in the fight against AIS by 
developing proactive solutions aimed at educating and empowering local citizens.  
 
WHEREAS, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners designates oversight of the Le Sueur 
County AIS Prevention Program to the Environmental Services Department and delegates to this 
department the responsibility to prepare, implement and report annually, a plan to allocate the 
funding in accordance with the above legislation. A comprehensive AIS prevention plan has 
been completed.  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners 
hereby adopts and begins implementation of its approved Aquatic Invasive Species Prevention 
Plan drafted by the Environmental Services Department and the Le Sueur County AIS Advisory 
Committee in conjunction with the County Sheriff’s Department. 
 
Dave Tiegs, Highway Engineer appeared before the Board with two items for approval. 
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following 2018 Municipal Maintenance Agreements: 
 
City  #Miles  $ Per Mile 2018 Payment 
Cleveland 2.29  $6,798.45 $15,568.45 
Elysian 1.35  $6,798.45 $  9,177.91 
Kasota  2.40  $6,798.45 $16,316.28 
Le Center 2.13  $6,798.45 $14,480.70 
Le Sueur 4.05  $6,798.45 $27,533.72 
Montgomery 3.36  $6,798.45 $22,842.79 
Waterville 3.29  $6,798.45 $22,366.90 
Totals  18.87    $128,286.75 
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved the 
following 2018 Budget Change Requests:      

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 6 / 112



 
Revenue 
Acct  Description   Proposed Budget Amt 
10-300-5065 Gravel Tax   $250,000.00 
10-300-5558 Misc. Reimbursements $9,550,000.00 
10-300-5892 State Aid Regular Maint. $1,760,000.00 
10-300-5893 State Aid Municipal Const. $2,640,000.00 
10-300-5896 Bridge Bonds   $105,514.00 
       
Expenditures 
Acct  Description   Proposed Budget Amt 
10-300-6260 Professional Services  $25,000.00 
10-301-6260 Professional Services  $600,000.00 
10-301-6388 Right of Way Related Items $400,000.00 
10-301-6389 State Aid Contracts  $1,750,000.00 
10-301-6390 State Aid Municipal Contr. $0 
10-301-6392 County Contract Pmts. $150,000.00 
10-302-6496 Supplies -Aggregate/Asphalt $400,000.00 
10-302-6605 Building & Structures  $480,000.00 
 
Darrell Pettis, County Administrator appeared before the Board with several items for discussion 
and approval. 
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the Board approved and 
authorized the Board Chair to sign the Baker Tilly services and terms set forth in their 
Engagement Letter as independent accountants for Le Sueur County.  
 
At 9:52 a.m. on motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing, the Board approved to recess the 
meeting until 10:00 a.m. 
 
At 10:00 a.m. on motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King, the Board approved to reconvene the 
board meeting. 
 
At 10:00 a.m. the Chairperson called the Public Hearing for the approval of the 2019 to 2023 
Capital Improvement Bonds pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.40.   
  
The Chairperson stated that this was the time and place fixed for a public hearing to be held on 
the County’s Capital Improvement Plan (the “Plan”) and issuance of bonds (the “Bonds”) under 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.40.  The County Administrator presented an affidavit showing 
publication of the notice of public hearing at least fourteen (14) but not more than twenty-eight 
(28) days prior to the date fixed for the public hearing in the Le Sueur County News, being the 
official newspaper of the County.  The affidavit was examined, found to be satisfactory and 
ordered it to be placed on file with the County Administrator. 

 
The Chairperson then opened the meeting for the public hearing on the proposal to adopt the 
Plan and approve the issuance of the Bonds.  The purpose of the hearing was explained, the 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 7 / 112



nature of the Plan and the Bonds was discussed, and all persons present who desired to do so 
were afforded an opportunity to express their views with respect to the proposal to approve the 
Plan and issue the Bonds. 

 
With no comments being received from the public on the proposals, at 10:22 a.m. on motion by 
Rohlfing, seconded by King, the Board approved to close public comments. 

On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King, the Board approved the following resolution:  

RESOLUTION RELATING TO APPROVAL OF A CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT PLAN AND ISSUANCE OF GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL 

IMPROVEMENT BONDS, SERIES 2019A 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Commissioners (the Board) of Le Sueur County, 
Minnesota (the Issuer), as follows: 

WHEREAS, the Issuer has published notice of its intent to hold a hearing on the 
issuance of capital improvement bonds under Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.40 (the 
“Bonds”) and on its proposed Capital Improvement Plan (the “Plan”), at least fourteen 
(14) but not more than twenty-eight (28) days prior to the date hereof, pursuant to and in 
accordance with Minnesota Statutes, Section 373.40 (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, the Board held a public hearing on the date hereof on the Plan and on the 
issuance of the Bonds to finance the remaining portion of the construction of a new 
justice center as detailed in the County's 2019 - 2023 Capital Improvement Plan. The 
County will pay debt service with future ad valorem property taxes, as described in the 
Act and in the Plan (the “Project”);  

WHEREAS, the Board has considered the factors described in subdivision 3 of the Act 
with respect to the Plan; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board hereby a) approves the Plan, and (b) 
authorizes the issuance of the Bonds in an amount not to exceed $13,750,000.  Pursuant to 
Minnesota Statutes, Section 475.60, Subdivision 2, paragraph (9), Ehlers & Associates is 
authorized to prepare and distribute an Official Statement and to solicit proposals for the Bonds 
on behalf of the County on a competitive sale basis.  This Board shall meet on January 15, 2019, 
for the purpose of considering proposals for the purchase of the Bonds and of taking such action 
thereon as may be in the best interests of the County. 
 
Board Member Committee Reports: 
 
Commissioner Rohlfing recently attended a LCDS meeting, County Ditch 70 Meeting, AMC 
Conference, AMC Environment and Natural Resource Policy Committee meeting and an MRCI 
Board meeting. 
 
Commissioner King attended a Le Sueur – Waseca Library Board meeting. 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 8 / 112



Commissioner Wetzel attended a LCDS meeting, MN Valley Coalition meeting, AMC award 
dinner and Le Sueur – Rice Joint Ditch meetings. 
 
On motion by Rohlfing, seconded by King and unanimously approved, the following claims 
were approved for payment: 
 
Warrant #  Vendor Name      Amount 
 
52443   Advanced Correctional Healthcare Inc.  $    2,442.90 
52444   Ag Partners Coop     $  25,856.39 
52455   Bolton & Menk Inc.     $    4,090.50 
52456   Constance Brastad     $  10,425.75 
52457   Lynn Breeggemann     $  17,037.71 
52461   Cardio Partners     $    6,200.00 
52462   Cargill Inc.      $  79,151.94 
52467   Contech Engineered Solutions LLC  $    2,108.82 
52475   Ehlers & Associates Inc.    $    3,800.00 
52476   Election Systems & Software Inc.   $    9,650.38 
52490   Javens Mechanical Contracting Inc.  $  15,074.44 
52494   Lake Francis Assoc     $    5,000.00 
52498   Le Sueur Co Soil & Water Conserv.Dist.  $  32,693.93 
52500   M-R Sign Co. Inc.     $    4,800.50 
52511   MN Dept of Transportation    $    2,541.81 
52523   Paragon Printing & Mailing Inc.   $  10,300.83 
52527   RDO Equipment Co.     $    3,042.12 
52532   Schwickert’s Tects America LLC   $    4,025.06 
52533   S.E.H. Inc.      $  26,623.26 
52534   SHI International Corp.    $    2,340.00 
52536   S.M.C. Co. Inc.     $    2,483.33 
52538   Suel Printing Co.     $    3,586.00 
52545   Traxler Construction Inc.    $    6,562.55 
52552   Vision Solutions Inc.     $    2,451.16 
52556   Waterford Oil Co. Inc.    $  35,831.55 
52558   Wenck Associates Inc.    $  15,170.42 
52566   WSB & Associates Inc.    $    2,063.00 
52567   Ziegler Inc.      $    2,160.63 
52568   Zimmerman Tiling & Excavating LLC  $    2,520.00 
    
98   Claims paid less than $2,000.00:     $  33,381.38 
29   Claims paid more than $2,000.00: $340,034.98 
127 Total all claims paid: $373,416.36 
 
On motion by King, seconded by Rohlfing and unanimously approved, the Board adjourned until 
Tuesday, December 18th, 2018 at 4:30 p.m. 
 
ATTEST: _____________________________    _______________________________ 
           Le Sueur County Administrator             Le Sueur County Chairman 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 9 / 112



Summary Minutes of Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners Meeting, December 11, 2018 
●This is only a summary publication per MN Statutes 375.12 and 331A.01 sub. 10.  The complete 
minutes are on file in the Le Sueur County Administrator’s Office at 88 S Park Ave. Le Center, MN and 
are available at www.co.le-sueur.mn.us. 
●Approved the agenda. (King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved the consent agenda. (Rohlfing-King) 
●Approved the Human Services claims: Financial $ 83,752.18 and Soc Services $ 92,933.52 (King-
Rohlfing) 
●Approved 4 year terms for Charles Richter, Mark Volkenant and Larry Maruska as Parks Board 
members. (Rohlfing-King) 
●Approved the Memorandum of Agreement to grant the leave of absence request for Nick Greenig in the 
Sheriff’s Office. (King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved regular status to David Yates in the County Attorney’s Office. (Rohlfing-King) 
●Approved the resignation from Michaela Erickson in Public Health. (King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved to hire Julie Brockway in Public Health. (King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved a personal leave request from employee 1638. (Rohlfing-King) 
●Approved to promote Laura Quickle to a full time Drug Court Coordinator in Drug Court. (Rohlfing-
King)  
●Approved to post and advertise for a full time Network Administrator in the Information Technology 
Department. (King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved the resignation request from Anna Schwichtenberg in Human Services. (King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved to post and request the merit list for a full time Office Support Specialist, Sr. in Human 
Services. (Rohlfing-King)  
●Approved to promote Emily O’Brien to Office Manager/Evidence Coordinator in the Sheriff’s Office. 
(Rohlfing-King) 
●Approved to post and advertise for a full time Sheriff Administrative Assistant in the Sheriff’s Office. 
(King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved the Resolution for Aquatic Invasive Species Prevention Aid. (King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved the 2018 Municipal Maintenance Agreements. (Rohlfing-King) 
●Approved the Highway Department 2018 Budget Change Requests. (Rohlfing-King)      
●Approved the Baker Tilly services and terms set forth in their Engagement Letter as independent 
accountants for Le Sueur County. (Rohlfing-King)  
●Approved to recess the meeting at 9:52 a.m. until 10:00 a.m. (King-Rohlfing) 
●Approved to reconvene the board meeting at 10:00 a.m. and called the Public Hearing for the approval 
of the 2019 to 2023 Capital Improvement Bonds. (Rohlfing-King) 
●With no public comments received, the Board approved to close public comments. (Rohlfing-King) 
●Approved the Resolution Relating to Approval of a Capital Improvement Plan and Issuance of General 
Obligation Capital Improvement Bonds, Series 2019A. (Rohlfing-King) 
●The following claims were approved for payment: (Rohlfing-King) 
Warrant # Vendor Name    Amount 
52443  Advanced Correctional Healthcare Inc. $    2,442.90 
52444  Ag Partners Coop   $  25,856.39 
52455  Bolton & Menk Inc.   $    4,090.50 
52456  Constance Brastad   $  10,425.75 
52457  Lynn Breeggemann   $  17,037.71 
52461  Cardio Partners    $    6,200.00 
52462  Cargill Inc.    $  79,151.94 
52467  Contech Engineered Solutions LLC $    2,108.82 
52475  Ehlers & Associates Inc.  $    3,800.00 
52476  Election Systems & Software Inc. $    9,650.38 
52490  Javens Mechanical Contracting Inc. $  15,074.44 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 10 / 112



52494  Lake Francis Assoc   $    5,000.00 
52498  Le Sueur Co Soil & Water Conserv.Dist.$  32,693.93 
52500  M-R Sign Co. Inc.   $    4,800.50 
52511  MN Dept of Transportation  $    2,541.81 
52523  Paragon Printing & Mailing Inc.  $  10,300.83 
52527  RDO Equipment Co.   $    3,042.12 
52532  Schwickert’s Tects America LLC $    4,025.06 
52533  S.E.H. Inc.    $  26,623.26 
52534  SHI International Corp.   $    2,340.00 
52536  S.M.C. Co. Inc.    $    2,483.33 
52538  Suel Printing Co.   $    3,586.00 
52545  Traxler Construction Inc.  $    6,562.55 
52552  Vision Solutions Inc.   $    2,451.16 
52556  Waterford Oil Co. Inc.   $  35,831.55 
52558  Wenck Associates Inc.   $  15,170.42 
52566  WSB & Associates Inc.   $    2,063.00 
52567  Ziegler Inc.    $    2,160.63 
52568  Zimmerman Tiling & Excavating LLC $    2,520.00 
98   Claims paid less than $2,000.00:   $  33,381.38 
29   Claims paid more than $2,000.00:   $340,034.98 
127 Total all claims paid:    $373,416.36 
●Adjourned until Tuesday, December 18th, 2018 at 4:30 p.m. (King-Rohlfing) 
ATTEST: Le Sueur County Administrator             Le Sueur County Chairman 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 11 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 12 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 13 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 2

4:35 p.m. Claims (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 14 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 3

4:40 p.m. Human Services (35 min.)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 15 / 112



 

 

Department of Human Services 
88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE     �     LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057-1646 

507-357-2251     �     FAX 507-357-6122 

 

 

Human Services Board Agenda 

December 18, 2018 @ 9:10 a.m. 
 

 

100- INFORMATION/PRESENTATIONS: 

 

• 110 -  County, City, Tribal, and State Health and Human Services Day 

o December 12th Proclamation Activity 

• 120 –  Community Connections Project Update 

• 130 -  U of M- Hubert H Humphrey Institute Program Evaluation 
 

 

200- CHARTS/GRAPHS: 
 

• 210- Finance Graphs/Report; 

• 220- Income Maintenance/Child Support Graphs;                                  

• 230- Family Services Graphs- 
                    231- Social Services Team  

       232- Child Services Team 

                   232.1- Out of Home Placement Report 

                   232.2- In-Home Family Therapy Report; 

        233- Behavioral Health Team 

 

300- BOARD APPROVAL ITEMS: 

 

• 310 –  AMH-CSP State Grant Contract CY 2019-20 

• 320 – 2019 Clubhouse Lease 

• 330 -  Commissioner’s Warrants    

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 16 / 112



 

1 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

State of Minnesota Department of 
Human Services County Grant Contract  

RECITALS 
THIS GRANT CONTRACT, and amendments and supplements thereto, is between State of Minnesota, 

acting through its Department of Human Services, Behavioral  Health Division (hereinafter STATE) and 

the county of Le Sueur, address 88 South Park Ave, Le Center, MN 56057 (hereinafter COUNTY), 

witnesseth that: 

WHEREAS, the STATE, pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 256.01, subdivision 2(a)(6) and 245.461 

to 245.486 (the “Minnesota Comprehensive Adult Mental Health Act”) is empowered to enter into grant 

contracts to create and ensure a unified, accountable, comprehensive adult mental health system, and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Minnesota Comprehensive Adult Mental Health Act, County and State will 
collaborate to provide supports and services that:  
  
(1) recognize the right of adults with mental illness to control their own lives as fully as possible; 

(2) promote the independence and safety of adults with mental illness; 

(3) reduce chronicity of mental illness; 

(4) eliminate abuse of adults with mental illness; 

(5) provide services designed to: 

(i) increase the level of functioning of adults with mental illness or restore them to a previously 

held higher level of functioning; 

(ii) stabilize adults with mental illness; 

(iii) prevent the development and deepening of mental illness; 

(iv) support and assist adults in resolving mental health problems that impede their functioning; 

(v) promote higher and more satisfying levels of emotional functioning; and 

(vi) promote sound mental health; and 

(6) provide a quality of service that is effective, efficient, appropriate, and consistent with contemporary 

professional standards in the field of mental health.     

NOW, THEREFORE, it is agreed: 

1. COUNTY'S RESPONSIBILITIES. COUNTY shall: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 17 / 112



 

2 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

1.1 Work to achieve the mission statement described in the Minnesota Comprehensive Adult 

Mental Health Act, in accordance with Attachment A, which is attached and incorporated into 

this grant contract. 

 

1.2  Ensure all revenue received by COUNTY and it’s contracted, or subcontracted providers shall be 

managed according to Minnesota Rules chapter 9535.1740, subp.3.   

1.3 Have written policy and procedures governing accounting and operational procedures.    

1.4 Ensure that all sub-contracts entered into under this agreement are written to comply with 

Minn. Stat. 245.466, subd. 3, and 256.0112.   

1.5 Have a transition plan that complies with Minn. Stat. 245.466 subd. 3a.     

1.6 Include persons with mental illness and tribal organizations of the county/region in the 

development, implementation, and evaluation of all Adult Mental Health Plans.   

1.7 Ensure that Adult Mental Health Initiative projects are planned and administered according to 

Minn. Stat. 245.4661.  

1.8 Ensure that Community Support Plan services are planned and administered according to Minn. 

Stat. 245.4712, subd. 1. 

1.9 When applicable, ensure contracted providers bill eligible insurance first before using grant 

funding.   

1.10 Complete and ensure all data reporting requirements are met, including, but not limited to, 

requirements related to the Mental Health Information System (MHIS) and the Social Services 

Information System (SSIS) as directed by the STATE.  

2. CONSIDERATION AND TERMS OF PAYMENT. 

 

2.1 Consideration. Consideration for all services performed and goods or materials supplied by 

COUNTY pursuant to this grant contract shall be paid by the STATE as follows: 

(a.) Compensation. COUNTY will be paid in accordance with Attachment A. Attachment A, “Budget”, 

covers two full calendar years. The total budget amount indicated in Attachment A is to be dispersed 

over two years. In calendar year 2019, GRANTEE shall not invoice the STATE, and STATE shall not pay 

GRANTEE, for more than half the total budget amount indicated in Attachment A.  

All expenditures must be for services, or items necessary for the delivery of those services. "Capital" 

purchases are prohibited. Capital purchases are defined as something which has a useful life of more 

than one year and a per-unit acquisition cost which exceeds $5,000 and is 1) land, buildings (facilities), 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 18 / 112



 

3 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

equipment, and intellectual property (including software) whether acquired by purchase, construction, 

manufacture, lease-purchase, exchange, or through capital leases; or 2) additions, improvements, 

modifications, replacements, rearrangements, reinstallations, renovations or alterations of the items 

listed above that materially increase their value or useful life (not ordinary repairs and maintenance).  

Revisions to the grant plan budget require prior approval from the STATE. Notwithstanding Clause 9 of 

this contract, revisions may be done on a form provided by the STATE. Revisions are required when 

adding or removing a BRASS code to the budget or adding or removing a provider(s). Amendments are 

required when extending the end date or changing the total grant award, pursuant to Clause 9 of this 

contract. 

 

(b.) Reimbursement. Reimbursement for travel and subsistence expenses actually and necessarily 

incurred by COUNTY'S performance of this grant contract shall be no greater amount than provided in 

the current Commissioner’s Plan (which is incorporated by reference) promulgated by the Commissioner 

of Minnesota Management and Budget.  COUNTY shall not be reimbursed for travel and subsistence 

expense incurred outside the State of Minnesota unless it has received prior written approval for such 

out of state travel from the STATE. 

(c.) Total obligation. The total obligation of the STATE for all compensation and reimbursements to 

COUNTY shall not exceed one hundred twenty two thousand twelve dollars ($122,012.00). 

(d.)  For compensation payable under this grant contract, which is subject to withholding under state or 

federal law, appropriate amounts will be deducted and withheld by the State as required. 

2.2. Terms of Payment 
(a.) Compensation shall be as follows: 

The county will receive one initial payment of $15,252.00. Following each March 31st, June 30th, 

September 30th and December 31st of each year of the contract, the COUNTY will report expenditures on 

the quarterly SEAGR report (DHS-2557) and on the BRASS-Based Grant Fiscal Report (DHS-2895). The 

COUNTY must use the DHS-2895 form specific to the grant. Upon receipt, the STATE will reimburse the 

COUNTY for expenditures reported. (b.) Within sixty (60) days of the end of the grant period, the STATE 

will complete a reconciliation of payments issued against expenditures reported by the COUNTY.  

(c.) If actual expenditures by the COUNTY are less than listed in the total approved program budget at 

the end of the grant contract’s term, the STATE shall reduce the final payment so as not to exceed total 

expenditures.    

3. CONDITIONS OF PAYMENT. All services provided by COUNTY pursuant to this grant 

contract shall be performed to the reasonable satisfaction of the STATE, and in accord with all applicable 

federal, state, and local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.  COUNTY shall not receive payment for 

work found by the STATE to be unsatisfactory, or performed in violation of federal, state or local law, 

ordinance, rule or regulation. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 19 / 112



 

4 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

4. PAYMENT RECOUPMENT. The COUNTY must reimburse the STATE upon demand or the 

STATE may deduct from future payments under this grant contract any amounts paid by the STATE, 

under this or any previous grant contract, for which invoices and progress reports have not been 

received, or for which the COUNTY'S books, records or other documents are not sufficient to clearly 

substantiate that those amounts were used by the COUNTY to perform grant services and in accordance 

with Minn. Stat. 245.483. 

5. TERMS OF GRANT CONTRACT. This grant contract shall be effective on January 1, 2019, 

or upon the date that the final required signature is obtained by the STATE, pursuant to Minnesota 

Statutes, section 16C.05, subdivision 2, whichever occurs later, and shall remain in effect through 

December 31, 2020, or until all obligations set forth in this grant contract have been satisfactorily 

fulfilled, whichever occurs first.  COUNTY understands that NO work should begin under this grant 

contract until ALL required signatures have been obtained.  STATE will notify COUNTY when all required 

signatures have been obtained.  The COUNTY shall have a continuing obligation, after said grant period, 

to comply with the following provisions of grant clauses:  10. Liability; 11. State Audits; 12. Information 

Privacy and Security; 13. Intellectual Property Rights; and 17. Jurisdiction and Venue. 

6. CANCELLATION. 

6.1. For Cause or Convenience. This grant contract may be cancelled by the STATE or COUNTY 

at any time, with or without cause, upon thirty (30) days written notice to the other party.  In the event 

of such a cancellation, COUNTY shall be entitled to payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for work or 

services satisfactorily performed.  The STATE has the right to suspend or terminate this grant contract 

immediately when the STATE deems the health or welfare of the service recipients is endangered, when 

the STATE has reasonable cause to believe that the COUNTY has breached a material term of the grant 

contract, or when COUNTY'S non-compliance with the terms of the grant contract may jeopardize 

federal financial participation. 

6.2. Insufficient Funds. The STATE may immediately terminate this grant contract if it does not 

obtain funding from the Minnesota Legislature, or other funding source; or if funding cannot be 

continued at a level sufficient to allow for the payment of the services covered here.  Termination will 

be by written notice to the COUNTY.  The STATE is not obligated to pay for any services that are 

provided after notice and effective date of termination.  However, the COUNTY will be entitled to 

payment, determined on a pro rata basis, for services satisfactorily performed to the extent that funds 

are available.  The STATE will not be assessed any penalty if the grant contract is terminated because of 

the decision of the Minnesota Legislature, or other funding source, not to appropriate funds.  The STATE 

must provide the COUNTY notice of the lack of funding within fifteen (15) days of the STATE’s receiving 

that notice. 

6.3. Breach. Notwithstanding clause 6.1., upon STATE’s knowledge of a curable material breach of 

the grant contract by COUNTY, STATE shall provide COUNTY written notice of the breach and thirty (30) 

days to cure the breach.  If COUNTY does not cure the breach within the time allowed, COUNTY will be 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 20 / 112



 

5 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

in default of this grant contract and STATE may cancel the grant contract immediately thereafter.  If 

COUNTY has breached a material term of this grant contract and cure is not possible, STATE may 

immediately terminate this grant contract. 

7. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES and RESPONSIBLE AUTHORITY. 

7.1. State. The STATE'S authorized representative for the purposes of administration of this grant 

contract Gloria Smith or her successor. Such representative, acting on behalf of the STATE, shall have 

final authority for acceptance of COUNTY'S services and if such services are accepted as satisfactory, 

shall so certify on each invoice submitted pursuant to Clause 2.2. All notices required under this grant 

contract shall be made to the Authorized Representative.  If the STATE’s Authorized Representative 

changes at any time during this grant contract, STATE will notify COUNTY in a reasonable amount of 

time. 

7.2. County. The COUNTY’s Authorized Representative is Lance Wetzel or his successor. If the 

COUNTY’s Authorized Representative changes at any time during this grant contract, the COUNTY must 

immediately notify the STATE.  All notices required under this grant contract shall be made to the 

Authorized Representative. 

8. ASSIGNMENT. COUNTY will not assign, transfer or subcontract any rights or obligations under 

this grant contract without the prior written consent of the STATE, except to the extent a subcontract is 

explicitly listed in Attachment A, the Approved Mental Health Plan. 

9. AMENDMENTS. Any amendments to this grant contract shall be in writing, and shall be 

executed by the same parties who executed the original grant contract, or their successors in office. 

10. LIABILITY. To the extent provided for in Minnesota Statutes, section 466.01 to 466.15, the 

COUNTY agrees to be responsible for any and all claims or causes of action arising from the performance 

of this grant contract by COUNTY or COUNTY’S agents or employees.  This clause shall not be construed 

to bar any legal remedies COUNTY may have for the STATE’S failure to fulfill its obligations pursuant to 

this grant. 

11. STATE AUDITS. Under Minnesota Statutes, section 16C.05, subdivision 5, the books, records, 

documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the COUNTY and its employees, agents, or 

subcontractors relevant to this grant contract shall be made available and subject to examination by the 

STATE, including the contracting Agency/Division, Legislative Auditor, and State Auditor for a minimum 

of six years from the end of this grant contract.  

12.   INFORMATION PRIVACY AND SECURITY.   
 

A. It is expressly agreed that STATE will not be disclosing or providing information protected 
under the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minnesota Statutes Chapter 13, 
(the “Data Practices Act”) as “not public data” on individuals to COUNTY under this grant 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 21 / 112



 

6 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

contract. “Not public data” means any data that is classified as confidential, private, 
nonpublic, or protected nonpublic by statute, federal law or temporary classification.  
Minn. Stat. § 13.02, subd. 8a. 

 
B. It is expressly agreed that COUNTY will not create, receive, maintain, or transmit 

"protected health information", as defined in the Health Insurance Portability 
Accountability Act (“HIPAA”), 45 C.F.R. § 160.103, on behalf of STATE for a function or 
activity regulated by 45 C.F.R. 160 or 164. Accordingly, COUNTY is not a "business 
associate" of STATE, as defined in HIPAA, 45 C.F.R. § 160.103 as a result of, or in 
connection with, this grant contract. Therefore, COUNTY is not required to comply with 
the privacy provisions of HIPAA as a result of, or for purposes of, performing under this 
grant contract. If COUNTY has responsibilities to comply with the Data Practices Act or 
HIPAA for reasons other than this grant contract, COUNTY will be responsible for its own 
compliance. 

13. Intellectual Property Rights. 

Definitions. Works means all inventions, improvements, discoveries (whether or not patentable or 

copyrightable), databases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, designs, 

drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, and disks conceived, reduced to practice, created or 

originated by the COUNTY, its employees, agents, and subcontractors, either individually or jointly with 

others in the performance of the grant contract. Works includes “Documents.”  Documents are the 

originals of any data bases, computer programs, reports, notes, studies, photographs, negatives, 

designs, drawings, specifications, materials, tapes, disks, or other materials, whether in tangible or 

electronic forms, prepared by the COUNTY, its employees, agents, or subcontractors, in the 

performance of this grant contract. 

Ownership. The STATE owns all rights, title, and interest in all of the intellectual property, including 

copyrights, patents, trade secrets, trademarks, and service marks in the Works and Documents created 

and paid for under this grant contract.  The Works and Documents will be the exclusive property of the 

STATE and all such Works and Documents must be immediately returned to the STATE by the COUNTY 

upon request of STATE.  To the extent possible, those Works eligible for copyright protection under the 

United States Copyright Act will be deemed to be “works made for hire.” If using STATE data, COUNTY 

must cite the data, or make clear by referencing that STATE is the source.  For clarity, COUNTY may 

maintain copies of records and Works and Documents it creates under this grant contract. 

Responsibilities. 
Assignment of Rights. Whenever any Works or Documents (whether or not patentable) are made or 

conceived for the first time or actually or constructively reduced to practice by the COUNTY, including its 

employees and subcontractors, and are created and paid for under this grant contract, the COUNTY will 

assign all right, title, and interest it may have in the Works and the Documents to the STATE. 

Filing and recording of ownership interests. The COUNTY must, at the request of the STATE, 

execute all papers and perform all other acts necessary to transfer or record the STATE’S ownership 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 22 / 112



 

7 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

interest in the Works and Documents created and paid for under this grant contract.  The COUNTY must 

perform all acts, and take all steps necessary to ensure that all intellectual property rights in these 

Works and Documents are the sole property of the STATE, and that neither COUNTY nor its employees, 

agents, or subcontractors retain any interest in and to these Works and Documents. 

Duty not to Infringe on intellectual property rights of others. The COUNTY represents and 

warrants that the Works and Documents created and paid for under this grant contract do not and will 

not infringe upon any intellectual property rights of other persons or entities. Notwithstanding Clause 

10, the COUNTY is liable for any and all claims or causes of action arising brought against the STATE to 

the extent that it is based on a claim that all or part of these Works or Documents infringe upon the 

intellectual property rights of others.  The COUNTY will be responsible for payment of any and all such 

claims, demands, obligations, liabilities, costs, and damages, including but not limited to, attorney fees.  

This remedy of the STATE will be in addition to and not exclusive of other remedies provided by law. 

14. WORKERS' COMPENSATION. The COUNTY certifies that it is in compliance with 

Minnesota Statute, section 176.181, subdivision 2, pertaining to workers’ compensation insurance 

coverage.  The COUNTY’S employees and agents will not be considered employees of the STATE.  Any 

claims that may arise under the Minnesota Workers’ Compensation Act on behalf of these employees or 

agents and any claims made by any third party as a consequence of any act or omission on the part of 

these employees or agents are in no way the STATE’S obligation or responsibility. 

15. VOTER REGISTRATION REQUIREMENT. COUNTY certifies that it will comply with 

Minnesota Statutes, section 201.162 by providing voter registration services for its employees and for 

the public served by the COUNTY. 

16. OWNERSHIP OF EQUIPMENT. The STATE shall have the right to require transfer of all 

equipment purchased with grant funds (including title) to the STATE or to an eligible non-STATE party 

named by the STATE.  This right will normally be exercised by the STATE only if the project or program 

for which the equipment was acquired is transferred from one grantee to another. 

17. JURISDICTION AND VENUE. This grant contract, and amendments and supplements 

thereto, shall be governed by the laws of the State of Minnesota.  Venue for all legal proceedings arising 

out of this grant contract, or breach thereof, shall be in the state or federal court with competent 

jurisdiction in Ramsey County, Minnesota. 

18. WAIVER. If either party fails to enforce any provision of this grant contract, that failure does 

not waive the provision or the party’s right to enforce it. 

19. CONTRACT COMPLETE. This grant contract, and its attachments, contains all negotiations 

and agreements between the STATE and the COUNTY.  No other understanding regarding this grant 

contract, whether written or oral may be used to bind either party. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 23 / 112



 

8 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

20. OTHER PROVISIONS. 
20.1. COUNTY agrees that no religious based counseling shall take place under the auspices of this grant 

contract. 

20.2. If the COUNTY has an independent audit, a copy of the audit shall be submitted to the STATE. 

20.3. COUNTY must comply with all applicable requirements of the Open Meeting Law in Minnesota 

Statutes chapter 13D. 

20.4. COUNTY and its subcontractors must comply with the Minnesota Department of Administration, 

Office of Grants Management policies for grants management. 

20.5. Payment to Subcontractors.  (If applicable)  As required by Minnesota Statutes, section 471.425, 

the COUNTY must pay all subcontractors, according to the terms of the contract or, if no contract terms 

apply, within the standard payment period unless the COUNTY in good faith disputes the obligation. 

Standard payment period is defined in Minnesota Statutes, section 471.425, subdivision 2. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 24 / 112



 

9 
Grant Contract #:  Revised 05/2015 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this grant contract to be duly executed intending to be 

bound thereby. 

 

APPROVED: 

 

1. STATE ENCUMBRANCE VERIFICATION 

Individual certifies that funds have been 

encumbered as required by Minnesota Statutes, 

chapter 16A and section 16C.05. 

By:___________________________ 

Date:_________________________ 

Grant No:_____________________ 

 

2. COUNTY 

Signatory is authorized by applicable articles, 

by-laws, resolutions, or ordinances to sign on 

behalf of the County. 

By:_______________________ 

Title:_____________________ 

Date:_____________________ 

 

I certify that the signatories for the County have 

lawful authority, by virtue of the by-laws or a 

resolution, to bind the County to the terms of 

this grant contract. 

(Attorney for County) 

By:________________________ 

Title:_______________________ 

Date:______________________ 

 

3.  STATE AGENCY 

By (with delegated 

authority):_________________ 

Title:______________________ 

Date:______________________ 

 

Distribution: 

Agency - Original (fully executed) grant contract 

County 

State Authorized Representative 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 25 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 26 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 27 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 4

5:15 p.m. Jeff Neisen, IT Director (10 min)

RE: IT Purchase-- Software/Hardware Justice Center 

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 28 / 112



Items for Purchase

SAN Total

SHI $54,753.00 $109,506.00

Marco $99,621.00 $99,621.00

DataCenter SHI $8,034.00

Marco $10,176.00

VMWare SHI $4,848.00

Marco $5,272.00

VeeamBackup SHI $17,044.00

FireWall ITSavvy $7,060.00

Mitel Phones License Marco $108.50 $5,425.00

Mitel Phones  Marco $257.30 $12,865.00

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 29 / 112



Bill To:
ACCT #: 574110
Le Sueur County
Accounts Payable
88 S Park Ave
Le Center, MN 56057
United States
507-357-8286

Ship To:
Le Sueur County
Jeff Neisen
88 S Park Ave
Le Center, MN 56057-1658
United States
507-357-8286

Subtotal:  $7,060.00

Shipping:  $0.00

Tax:  Exempt

TOTAL:  $7,060.00

Client Executive:
Jason Hawkins
(P) 630.396.6318
(F) 630.396.6322
jhawkins@ITsavvy.com

Item Description Part # Tax Qty Unit Price Total

1 WatchGuard Firebox M500
Security appliance - with 3 years Basic Security Suite - 8 ports - GigE - 1U
Manufacturer Part #: WGM50033

16239216 Y 1 $7,060.00 $7,060.00

Description: Watchguard M500 w/ 3yr Basic Security Suite

ITsavvy LLC
313 South Rohlwing Road
Addison, IL 60101
www.ITsavvy.com 

Client Contact:
Jeff Neisen
(P) 507-357-8286
jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

Quote Details

Quote #: 3177249

Date: 12/18/2018

Payment Method: Net 30 Days

Client PO#: 

Cost Center:

Shipping Method: Ground

ITsavvy is always looking to deliver the lowest cost possible to our clients.  This results in fluctuating prices that you will find are lower more often than 
not.  However, prices are subject to increases without notice in the event of a manufacturer or distributor price increase.  Available inventory is subject to 
change without notice.  This document is a quotation only and is not an order or offer to sell. 

We do accept credit cards for payment.  However, if the credit card is provided after the order has been invoiced there will be a charge of 3% of the total 
purchase.

Unless specifically listed above, these prices do NOT include applicable taxes, insurance, shipping, delivery, setup fees, or any cables or cabling services 
or material. 

All non-recurring services are 50% due upon signing of contract, 40% due upon delivery of equipment, balance due upon install.

ITsavvy's General Terms and Conditions of Sale, which can be found at www.ITsavvy.com/termsandconditions, shall apply to and are incorporated into all 
agreements with Client, including all Orders.

Printed Name: ___________________________________ Title: ___________________________________

Authorized Signature: _____________________________ Date: ___________________________________

Fair Market Value $1 Buy Out

3 Year FMV / Year 5 Year FMV / Year 3 Year $1 / Year 5 Year $1 / Year

$2,336.85 $1,565.86 $2,550.03 $1,608.30

Lease prices listed above are estimates.  They apply for Public School and Municipal Entities only.  
They are based upon individual credit review and approval.  Your final rates will be determined after 
credit review.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 30 / 112



 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  16400176
Created On:  12/13/2018
Valid Until:   12/31/2018

 
County of Le Sueur

 
Inside Account
Executive

 
Jeff Neisen
88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
United States
Phone: 507.357.2251 ext 286
Fax:  
Email: jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

 

David Vieira
290 Davidson Ave. 
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone: 732-652-7647
Fax: 732-564-8078
Email: David_Vieira@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 VBR ENT UPG FROM VBE ENT 2SOCKET BNDL PUBLIC SECTOR 

   Veeam Software - Part#: P-VBRENT-VS-P0000-UB 
   Note: For Renewal until March 3 2022

3 $910.00 $2,730.00

 
2 ANNUAL BASIC MNT RNWL VBR ENT 

   Veeam Software - Part#: V-VBRENT-VS-P01AR-00 
   Note: For Renewal until March 3 2022

6 $320.00 $1,920.00

 
3 ADDL 2YR PROD 24/7 MNT PREPAID FOR VBR ENT INCL 1ST YR 24/7 UPLIFT 

   Veeam Software - Part#: V-VBRENT-VS-P02PP-00 
   Note: For Renewal until March 3 2022

10 $745.00 $7,450.00

 
4 VBR ENT PUBLIC SECTOR 

   Veeam Software - Part#: P-VBRENT-VS-P0000-00 
   Note: For Renewal until March 3 2022

4 $1,137.00 $4,548.00

 
5 MONTHLY PROD 24/7 MNT RNWL INCL 24/7 UPLIFT VBR ENT 

   Veeam Software - Part#: V-VBRENT-VS-P0PMR-00 
   Note: For Renewal until March 3 2022

12 $33.00 $396.00

 
Subtotal $17,044.00

Total $17,044.00

Additional Comments

Veeam has a no returns policy.

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set
above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order.

SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman Owned Business.
TAX ID# 22-3009648; DUNS# 61-1429481; CCR# 61-243957G; CAGE 1HTF0

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 31 / 112



 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  16405560
Created On:  12/14/2018
Valid Until:   1/13/2019

 
County of Le Sueur

 
Inside Account
Executive

 
Jeff Neisen
88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
United States
Phone: 507.357.2251 ext 286
Fax:  
Email: jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

 

David Vieira
290 Davidson Ave. 
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone: 732-652-7647
Fax: 732-564-8078
Email: David_Vieira@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 VMware vSphere Standard - (v. 6) - license - 1 processor 

   VMware - Part#: VS6-STD-C
4 $902.00 $3,608.00

 
2 VMware Support and Subscription Production - Technical support - for VMware

vSphere Standard Edition (v. 6) - 1 processor - emergency phone consulting - 1 year
- 24x7 - response time: 30 min 
   VMware - Part#: VS6-STD-P-SSS-C

4 $310.00 $1,240.00

 
Subtotal $4,848.00

Total $4,848.00

Additional Comments

Please note the following:

1) VMware EULA -- VMware EULA
2) VMware Does Not offer a standard return policy 
3) Service offerings are non-refundable
4) PSO Credits are only active for 1 Year 

1. By issuing a purchase order or acknowledging this quote, when applicable, Customer certifies that employees at each of their
locations adhere to all applicable export and re-export control laws and regulations covering the distributed products purchased
and/or received by the Customer. 
2. By issuing a purchase order or acknowledging this quote, and when applicable, Customer understands that the commodities,
software and/or technology (“Items”) it purchases or receives under this quote may be subject to export, re-export, or other
restrictions. Customer agrees to comply with all applicable laws and regulations relating to the export and re-export of such Items
obtained by Customer.

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set
above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order.

SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman Owned Business.
TAX ID# 22-3009648; DUNS# 61-1429481; CCR# 61-243957G; CAGE 1HTF0

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 32 / 112

https://www.vmware.com/download/eula.html


Version: 2

Date Issued: 12/18/2018

Expiration Date: 01/16/2019

Quote #: 032394

Quote Information:

Le Sueur County - VMware vsphere

Prepared for:Prepared by:

Marco - Mankato

Doug Doyle

320.259.3001 x8652

doug.doyle@marconet.com

LE SUEUR COUNTY

88 S PARK AVE

LE CENTER, MN  56057

Jeff Neisen

507.357.8101

jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

VMware Vsphere with 1 Year Production Support

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

     

                 

         

Subtotal: $5,272.00

Page: 2 of 4 Job #:Quote #032394 v2 CONFIDENTIAL |  MARCO

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 33 / 112



 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  16402421
Created On:  12/13/2018
Valid Until:   1/12/2019

 
County of Le Sueur

 
Inside Account
Executive

 
Jeff Neisen
88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
United States
Phone: 507.357.2251 ext 286
Fax:  
Email: jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

 

David Vieira
290 Davidson Ave. 
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone: 732-652-7647
Fax: 732-564-8078
Email: David_Vieira@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 PROSUPPORT PLUS HARDWARE SUPPORT 

   Dell - Part#: M-PSP-HWE-004
1 $12,498.00 $12,498.00

 
2 PDP ONSITE BASE PLUS IMPLEMENTATION 

   Dell - Part#: PS-PDP-UXIMBPOS
1 $7,588.00 $7,588.00

 
3 30DAYPOSTDEPLOYASSIST UNITY 

   Dell - Part#: PS-PDP-P30UNITY
1 $227.00 $227.00

 
4 UNITY PRODEPLOYPLUS TRACKING 

   Dell - Part#: PS-PDP-UNYTRACKING
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
5 1 TRAINING CREDIT VALID 1YR (PDP) 

   EMC - Part#: CE-PDPTC0001
800 $2.00 $1,600.00

 
6 UNITY 300 2U DPE 25X2.5 DRIVE FLD RCK 

   Dell - Part#: D31D24AF25
1 $5,248.00 $5,248.00

 
7 UNITY 25 DRIVE DPE FLD INSTALL KIT 

   Dell - Part#: D31DEMCCK25KIT
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
8 HARDWARE INSTALLATION 

   Dell - Part#: PS-BAS-UXHWIN
1 $1,787.00 $1,787.00

 
9 UNITY 4X10GB SFP ISCSI/ETH CONNECTION 

   Dell - Part#: D3SFP10I
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
10 UNITY 6TB NLSAS 15X3.5 DRIVE 

   EMC - Part#: D3-VS07-6000
9 $969.00 $8,721.00

 
11 UNITY 3U 15X3.5 DRIVE DAE FLD RCK 

   Dell - Part#: D3123F
1 $1,155.00 $1,155.00

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 34 / 112



12 UNITY 1.8TB 10K SAS 25X2.5 DRIVE 
   EMC - Part#: D3-2S10-1800

10 $703.00 $7,030.00

 
13 UNITY SYSPACK 6X1.8TB 10K SAS 25X2.5 

   Dell - Part#: D3SP-S6X1800-10K
1 $4,213.00 $4,213.00

 
14 UNITY 400GB FAST CACHE 25X2.5 DRIVE 

   EMC - Part#: D3FC-2S12FX-400
3 $1,136.00 $3,408.00

 
15 ADD HOST SMALL 

   Dell - Part#: PS-BAS-UXADHSM
1 $1,278.00 $1,278.00

 
16 UNITY 300 BASE SOFTWARE+ D@RE=IC 

   Dell - Part#: 458-001-839
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
17 PROSUPPORT PLUS SOFTWARE SUPPORT 

   Dell - Part#: M-PSP-SWE-004
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
18 STORAGE M&R FOR UNITY=IC 

   Dell - Part#: 458-002-287
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
19 PROSUPPORT W/MISSION CRITICAL-SOFTWARE 

   Dell - Part#: M-PSM-SWE-005
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
20 STORAGE M&R FOR UNITY LIC=IC 

   Dell - Part#: 456-113-338
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
21 APPSYNC BASIC FOR UNITY 300 =IC 

   Dell - Part#: 458-001-425
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
22 PROSUPPORT W/MISSION CRITICAL-SOFTWARE 

   Dell - Part#: M-PSM-SWE-004
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
23 APPSYNC BASIC FOR UNITY 300 =IC 

   Dell - Part#: 456-109-802
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
24 RP BASIC FOR UNITY 300/300F/350F =IC 

   Dell - Part#: 458-001-374
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
25 PROSUPPORT W/MISSION CRITICAL-SOFTWARE 

   Dell - Part#: M-PSM-SWE-004
1 $0.00 $0.00

 
Subtotal $54,753.00

Total $54,753.00

Additional Comments

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set
above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order.

SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman Owned Business.
TAX ID# 22-3009648; DUNS# 61-1429481; CCR# 61-243957G; CAGE 1HTF0

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 35 / 112

https://www.shi.com/CustomerServices/SHIInfo.aspx?ContentId=95080&Menu=about


Version: 4

Date Issued: 12/18/2018

Expiration Date: 01/12/2019

Quote #: 032073

Quote Information:

Le Sueur County - Storage

Prepared for:Prepared by:

Marco - Minneapolis

Doug Doyle

320.259.3001 x8652

doug.doyle@marconet.com

LE SUEUR COUNTY

88 S PARK AVE

LE CENTER, MN  56057

Jeff Neisen

507.357.8101

jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

MSA SAN - 58 TB Usable with 800 GB SSD for cachin or

storage

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

     

     

       

               

                

               

              

      

      

            

           

     

     

       

               

                

              

               

      

      

Subtotal: $99,621.54

Page: 2 of 3 Job #:Quote #032073 v4 CONFIDENTIAL |  MARCO

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 36 / 112



 
Pricing Proposal
Quotation #:  16405305
Created On:  12/14/2018
Valid Until:   1/31/2019

 
County of Le Sueur

 
Inside Account
Executive

 
Jeff Neisen
88 South Park Avenue
Le Center, MN 56057
United States
Phone: 507.357.2251 ext 286
Fax:  
Email: jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

 

David Vieira
290 Davidson Ave. 
Somerset, NJ 08873
Phone: 732-652-7647
Fax: 732-564-8078
Email: David_Vieira@shi.com

All Prices are in US Dollar (USD) 
  Product Qty Your Price Total

 
1 Microsoft Windows Server 2019 Datacenter - License - 16 cores - Select Plus -

Single Language 
   Microsoft - Part#: 9EA-01072 
   Note: Covers 32 Cores all together.

2 $4,017.00 $8,034.00

 
Subtotal $8,034.00

Total $8,034.00

 

Additional Optional Items

 
  Microsoft Windows Server 2019 - License - 1 user CAL - Select Plus - Single

Language 
   Microsoft - Part#: R18-05796

1 $28.00 $28.00

 
  Microsoft Windows Server 2019 - License - 1 device CAL - Select Plus - Single

Language 
   Microsoft - Part#: R18-05795

1 $22.00 $22.00

Additional Comments

Thank you for choosing SHI International Corp! The pricing offered on this quote proposal is valid through the expiration date set
above. To ensure the best level of service, please provide End User Name, Phone Number, Email Address and applicable Contract
Number when submitting a Purchase Order.

SHI International Corp. is 100% Minority Owned, Woman Owned Business.
TAX ID# 22-3009648; DUNS# 61-1429481; CCR# 61-243957G; CAGE 1HTF0

The Products offered under this proposal are resold in accordance with the SHI Online Customer Resale Terms and Conditions,
unless a separate resale agreement exists between SHI and the Customer.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 37 / 112

https://www.shi.com/CustomerServices/SHIInfo.aspx?ContentId=95080&Menu=about


Version: 2

Date Issued: 12/18/2018

Expiration Date: 01/16/2019

Quote #: 032392

Quote Information:

Le Sueur County - Microsoft Windows Server 2019 Datacenter

Prepared for:Prepared by:

Marco - Mankato

Doug Doyle

320.259.3001 x8652

doug.doyle@marconet.com

LE SUEUR COUNTY

88 S PARK AVE

LE CENTER, MN  56057

Jeff Neisen

507.357.8101

jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

* This Tab Contains Optional ItemsProducts

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

           

          

  

            

            

* Optional Subtotal: $10,176.00

Subtotal: $10,166.00

Page: 2 of 4 Job #:Quote #032392 v2 CONFIDENTIAL |  MARCO

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 38 / 112



Le Sueur Conunty - Mitel Handsets

Ship To:

LE SUEUR COUNTY

88 S PARK AVE

LE CENTER, MN  56057

Jeff Neisen

507.357.8101

jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

,

Jeff Neisen

507.357.8101

jneisen@co.le-sueur.mn.us

LE SUEUR COUNTY

Doug Doyle

320.259.3001 x8652

doug.doyle@marconet.com

Marco - Mankato

Prepared by: Prepared for: Quote Information:

Quote #: 030818

Version: 1

Date Issued: 12/03/2018

Expiration Date: 01/02/2019

Special Pricing Program:

NJPA

Budgetary - AMC Transfer

Description Price Qty Ext. Price

             

           

             

            

     

       

Subtotal: $14,764.00

Page: 2 of 4 Job #:Quote #030818 v1 CONFIDENTIAL |  MARCO

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 39 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 5

5:25 p.m. Human Resources (5 min)

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 40 / 112



 
 

Equal Opportunity Employer 

 

88 SOUTH PARK AVENUE  LE CENTER, MINNESOTA 56057 

Telephone: 507-357-8517  Fax: 507-357-8607 

Cindy Westerhouse – Human Resources Director 

Human Resources   
 

 
 

 

 
HUMAN RESOURCES 

AGENDA ITEMS 
December 18, 2018 

 
 

 
Recommendation to grant regular status to Leslie Heilman, Agency Social Worker in Human 
Services, effective December 18, 2018.   
 
Recommendation to accept the resignation from Ryan Schaefer, part time Correctional 
Officer/Dispatcher in the Sheriff’s Office, effective December 13, 2018.   
 
Recommendation to grant a personal leave request from employee 1927, effective December 
13, 2018 to March 26, 2019. 
 
Recommend to promote Jose Aguillon, full time Help Desk Supervisor in the Information 
Technology Department, Grade 9, Step 6 at $26.04 per hour to a full time Network 
Administrator in the Information Technology Department, Grade 10, Step 8 at $29.57 per 
hour, effective December 24, 2018. 
 
Recommendation to post and advertise for a full time Help Desk Supervisor in the Information 
Technology Department, Grade 9, Step 4 at $24.25 per hour.   
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 41 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 6

5:30 p.m. Chuck Retka (5 min)

RE: Ney Snowmobile Trail

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 42 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 7

5:35 p.m. Amy Beatty, Environmental Programs Specialist (5 
minutes)

Household Hazardous Waste Agreement with Scott County

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 43 / 112



  ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 

Mailing Address: 88 South Park Avenue, Le Center, MN 56057 

Physical Address: 515 South Maple Avenue, Le Center, MN 56057 

Direct Dial: 507-357-8538   Fax: 507-357-8541 

Email: environmentalservices@co.le-sueur.mn.us 

    County Website: www.co.le-sueur.mn.us  

 

Date:  Thursday, December 13, 2018 
 
To:  Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners 
 
From:  Amy Beatty, Le Sueur County Environmental Programs Specialist 
 
RE:  Le Sueur and Scott Counties Household Hazardous Waste Agreement 
 
Agreement History: 
 

Scott County approached Le Sueur County in early 2007 due to increasing number of Le Sueur County 
residents using the Scott County Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) Facility.  The first agreement was signed 
by the counties in spring of 2007.  The term of the initial agreement was from January 1, 2007 to December 
31, 2009.  This agreement allowed Le Sueur County residents to properly dispose of their HHW at the Scott 
County Facility.  The cost for dispose was directly billed to Le Sueur County.  Le Sueur County used SCORE 
funding to pay for HHW disposal costs.  Le Sueur County was billed on an annual basis.  The invoice was 
determined by the previous year’s cost for operation divided by the total number of participants plus $5 
administrative fee per participant.   

At the end of 2009, Scott County approached Le Sueur County with the option of paying a flat fee for use of 
the facility.  After discussion between county staff, a fee of $3,000 was proposed based on past participation.  
This fee and agreement were approved by both County Boards of Commissioners. 
 
Proposed Agreement: 
 
The proposed agreement is for the term of January 1, 2019 to December 31, 2019.  The fee amount is a flat 
fee of $9,000.   
 
Facility Hours of Operation: 
 
The Scott County HHW Facility is open three days per week from January to December.  It also offers monthly 
fluorescent bulb collections for businesses.  County residents may also dispose of tires, appliances, and 
electronics for a fee.   
 
It is my recommendation that the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners to make a motion to sign this 
agreement between Le Sueur County and Scott County for the use of the Scott County Household Hazardous 
Waste Facility.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 44 / 112

mailto:environmentalservices@co.le-sueur.mn.us
http://www.co.le-sueur.mn.us/


HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE 
 INTER-COUNTY AGREEMENT 
 BETWEEN SCOTT COUNTY AND LE SUEUR COUNTY 
 

THIS AGREEMENT is between Scott County and Le Sueur County, through their respective Boards 
of Commissioners, (hereinafter jointly referred to as the "Counties"). 

 
WHEREAS, the Counties desire to create a mechanism whereby residents of Le Sueur County may 

use the Household Hazardous Waste Facility in Scott County; and 
 
WHEREAS, Scott County may enter into agreement with the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency for 

the operation and management of Metropolitan Household Hazardous Waste Facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, Scott County shall provide a Household Hazardous Waste management program for 

their residents; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is recognized that there is a regional benefit derived from increasing the availability of 

Household Hazardous Waste Facilities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the administrative cost for tracking waste origin is substantial and recognizing that 

waste has no borders, it is desirable that during the term of this Agreement the Counties will work together to 
find more efficient arrangements for managing waste received from residents of the other County. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the Counties 

hereby agree as follows: 
 
1. PURPOSE 
 

This Agreement shall establish a mechanism to allow for the use of the Household Hazardous Waste 
Facilities and to provide for payment of costs incurred by Scott County receiving household 
hazardous waste from residents of Le Sueur County. 

 
2. TERM 
 

This Agreement shall commence on January 1, 2019, and terminate on December 31, 2019, unless 
terminated earlier as provided herein. This agreement can be extended for additional years upon the 
mutual agreement of both counties. 

 
3. DEFINITIONS 
 

The terms used in this Agreement shall have the following meanings: 
 

a. County shall mean Scott County or Le Sueur County. 
b. County of Origin shall mean Le Sueur County 
c. EPA or MPCA Permitted Facility shall mean a facility that is permitted by the EPA or MPCA 

to transfer, store, process, or dispose of the type of household hazardous waste to be 
delivered under this Agreement. 

d. Household Hazardous Waste (HHW) shall mean waste as defined in Minn. Stat. § 115A.96, 
subdivision 1(b). 

e. Household Hazardous Waste Facility shall mean a facility that consists of one or more 
collection, management, and/or storage facility or facilities which are located in one County 
and are available for use by residents of the other County.  A Household Hazardous Waste 
Facility may consist of one or more stationary or mobile facilities.  A Household Hazardous 
Waste Facility may be publicly or privately owned and/or operated. 

f. MPCA Approved Processing/Disposal Facilities shall mean facilities evaluated and approved 
by the MPCA for the processing and/or disposal of HHW, the use of which the MPCA has 
authorized in writing. 

g. Problem Materials shall mean waste as defined in Minn. Stat. § 115A.03, subdivision 24a. 
h. Program Wastes shall mean wastes that a County accepts at a Household Hazardous Waste 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 45 / 112



2 

 

Facility.  These wastes shall include HHW.  These wastes may also include Problem 
Materials that are not HHW. 

i. Receiving County shall mean Scott County 
j. Special Handling shall mean services including long-term storage, handling by a bomb squad 

or other extraordinary treatment and/or disposal practices. 
k. State Contractor Services shall mean hazardous waste management services that are 

performed for either County’s program activities and made available by the MPCA through its 
contracts with hazardous waste management firms.  Hazardous waste management services 
include supplying materials, receiving and sorting HHW, packaging, repackaging, consulting, 
training and sampling, analysis, treatment, transportation, storage, and disposal. 

l. State Household Hazardous Waste Operations Contract shall mean the contract(s) between 
the Counties and the State of Minnesota for the operation of Household Hazardous Waste 
Facilities, as may be amended. 

 
4. USE 
 

The Counties agree that:  
 

a. Residents of the County of Origin may use the Household Hazardous Waste Facility in Scott 
County to the same extent the facility is available to Receiving County residents.  The 
Receiving County, however, shall have the right to refuse to accept any HHW (types or 
quantities) that will require Special Handling.  The County of Origin shall use its best efforts to 
minimize the delivery of HHW requiring Special Handling by the Receiving County or its 
contractors;  

b. Each County shall comply with the requirements as set forth in the State Household 
Hazardous Waste Operations Contract; and 

c. Each County shall provide a HHW management program meeting the requirements of Minn. 
Stat. § 473.804 and § 115A.96.  

 
5.         PAYMENT 
  

a.         For the benefit of its resident’s access to Scott County HHW Facilities, Le Sueur County shall 
pay Scott County nine thousand dollars and no cents ($9,000.00) for 2019.     

b.         In addition to the County fee, Le Sueur residents using Scott County’s Household Hazardous 
Waste Facility shall be charged the same rates for services as are applicable for Scott 
County residents using the same facility.    

c.         The fee payable pursuant to Section 5(a) above shall be remitted within sixty (60) days of the 
effective date of this Agreement.  

 
6. RECORDS 
 

Each County shall maintain financial and other records and accounts in accordance with 
requirements of the State of Minnesota.  Each County shall maintain strict accountability of all funds 
and maintain records of all receipts and disbursements.   
 

7. AUDIT/ACCESS TO HOUSEHOLD HAZARDOUS WASTE FACILITIES 
 

Each County shall allow the other County and the State of Minnesota pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 
16C.05, subdivision 5, including the Legislative Auditor or the State Auditor, access to its records at 
reasonable hours, including all books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices 
relevant to the subject matter of this Agreement, for purposes of audit.  In addition, each County shall 
have access to the other County’s Household Hazardous Waste Facilities at reasonable hours. 
 
 

8. COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS OF THE LAW 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 46 / 112



3 

 

 
In performing the provisions of this Agreement, each County agrees to comply with all applicable 
federal, state or local laws, ordinances, rules and regulations.   
 

9. AFFIRMATIVE ACTION 
 

No person shall illegally, on the grounds of race, creed, color, religion, sex, marital status, public 
assistance status, sexual preference, handicap, age or national origin, be excluded from full 
employment rights in, participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subject to unlawful 
discrimination under any program, service or activity hereunder. 

 
10. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 

It is understood and agreed that this Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and 
that this Agreement supersedes all oral and written agreements and negotiations between the parties 
relating to the subject matter hereof. 

 
11. AMENDMENTS 
 

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, any amendments, alterations, variations, 
modifications, or waivers of this Agreement shall be valid only when they have been reduced to 
writing and duly signed by each County. 

 
12. TERMINATION 
 

Either County may terminate this Agreement, with or without cause, by providing ninety (90) days’ 
written notice to other County.  Termination shall not act to discharge any liability incurred by any 
County before the effective date of termination, including payments or credits due.  Such liability shall 
continue until appropriately discharged by law or agreement.  Upon termination, residents may no 
longer use Household Hazardous Waste Facilities in the other County. In the event this Agreement is 
terminated after Le Sueur County has made its annual payment under Section 5(a) above, said 
payment shall be reimbursed by Scott County to Le Sueur County on a pro-rata basis. which will be 
based on the number of Le Sueur County participants that have used Scott County’s facility up to the 
date the Agreement is terminated compared to the average number of users from the year before.. 

 
13. CONTACTS 
 
 The individuals designated as contact persons for this agreement within each county shall be: 
 

Richard Jones 
Scott County Environmental Services 
200 Fourth Avenue West 
Shakopee, MN 55379-1220 
Ph: 952-496-8366 
Email: RJones@co.scott.mn.us 

Amy Beatty 
Le Sueur County Environmental Services 
88 South Park Avenue 
Le Center, MN 56057 
Ph: 507-357-8203 
Email: abeatty@co.le-sueur.mn.us 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
14. LIABILITY/INDEMNIFICATION AMONG THE COUNTIES 

 
a. General Indemnification.  The Counties agree that each County will be responsible for its 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 47 / 112



4 

 

own acts and the results thereof and shall not be responsible for the acts of the other County 
and the results thereof.  Each County therefore agrees that it will assume liability for itself, its 
agents, employees, or contractors for any injury to persons or property resulting in any 
manner from the conduct of its own operations, and operations of its agents, employees or 
contractors.  Each County shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless the other County for all 
liability, obligations, claims, loss and expense, including reasonable attorneys and other 
professional fees, resulting from its acts or the acts of its agents, employees or contractors. 

 
b. Environmental Impairment Claims.  It is the intention of the Counties that the Receiving 

County shall assume all liability under the federal Comprehensive Environmental Response, 
Compensation and Liability Act, the Minnesota Environmental Response and Liability Act, or 
any similar statute, and all other liabilities resulting from actual or threatened impairment of 
the environment (hereinafter "Superfund Liability") resulting from the operation of the 
Receiving County's HHW program.  The Receiving County shall defend, indemnify and hold 
harmless each County of Origin pursuant to Section 13(a) for any Superfund Liability 
resulting from the Receiving County's HHW program, including Superfund Liability related to 
waste delivered from the County of Origin pursuant to this Agreement. 

 
c. Indemnification for Benefit of Counties.  The indemnification provisions of this Section 14 are 

for the benefit of the Counties only and shall not establish, of themselves, any liability to third 
parties.  Nothing in this Agreement is intended to waive or limit the provisions of Minn. Stat. 
Chap. 466, or any other law, legislative or judicial, which limits governmental liability or allow 
for stacking by any third party. 

 
15. SURVIVAL 
 

Sections 5, 6, 7 and 13 of this Agreement shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement or 
the services or duties to be performed hereunder. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 48 / 112



5 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have hereunto set their hands on the date written as 
follows:   
 
COUNTY OF SCOTT 
 
 
 

Paul Nelson 
Environmental Services Manager 
 
 

Date 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 

Scott County Attorney’s Office 
 
 

Date 
 

COUNTY OF LE SUEUR 
 
 
 

Chair, Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners 
 
 
 

Date 
 
 
Approved as to form: 
 
 
 

Le Sueur County Attorney’s Office 
 
 

Date 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 49 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 8

5:40 p.m. Darrell Pettis, County Administrator

RE: Highway Items

RE: Finley Engineering Proposal and Contract

RE: Le Sueur County Hazard Mitigation Plan Update for 2019

RE: End of Year Board Action Items

RE: Future Meetings

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 50 / 112



Highway Department Agenda Items 

Tuesday, December 18th, 2018 County Board Meeting: 

 

1.) Final Payment SAP 040-603-027 & SAP 040-614-011 

 

 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 51 / 112



             

 

 

 

 

 

 

FinleyUSA.com       ccgcomm.com            

 
LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN 

 
BROADBAND FEASIBILITY STUDY PROPOSAL 

 
NOVEMBER 29, 2018 

 
 

    

PROPOSAL RESPONSE 
 

Submitted by: 

Mark Mrla 
Finley Engineering Company, Inc. 

1981 Engebretson St. 
Slayton, MN  56172 

507.777.2222 
m.mrla@finleyusa.com 

 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 52 / 112



 
  
 

 

                                                      

 
September 28, 2018 
 
John King and Team 
Le Sueur County MN 
jking@co.le-sueur.mn.us 
 
Re: Proposal for Broadband Feasibility Study  
 
Mr. King and Team: 
 
Finley Engineering Company, Inc. (Finley) and CCG Consulting (CCG) appreciate the opportunity to present 
you with options for a feasibility study, and look forward to the possibility of working with the county.  If 
you choose to have us move forward with any type of study, Finley will be the prime contractor and will 
perform any type of assessment of your current and planned network and any high level design and budget 
development.  CCG would perform the financial feasibility analysis, funding options, market surveys, and 
surveying local providers. 
 
We take a little different philosophical approach from many other study proposals in the industry.  Our 
primary focus on this type of study is to find a solution that can be funded and built. By taking this approach, 
it will clearly show whether you should be in the market of offering broadband services.  Many other 
consultants put their emphasis on finding the exact right technology – and while that is important, and our 
team has highly experienced engineers – all of the technical analysis in the world is wasted if it’s used to 
propose a project that someone can’t realistically fund. Doug Dawson at CCG has a long career in financial 
feasibility and finding creative ways to get projects funded. Our analysis is done with the goal of eventually 
getting the project built, whether it be by the county, other providers or investors. 
 
Finley has completed many hundreds of fiber projects for cities, counties, telcos, and cooperatives 
throughout the United States, and CCG has prepared over 200 feasibility studies that were subsequently 
built and operational. The advantage to using this combination of Finley and CCG is that you are getting 
opinions, costs, and schedule estimates from two of the most experienced firms in the industry as opposed 
to only one firm. This gives the final study report more credibility, which in turn gives the county more 
confidence in how to move forward. 
 
We greatly appreciate the opportunity to be considered for your study project and look forward to working 
with your staff and possibly the local community on this initiative. 
 
 
Mark Mrla, Director      Doug Dawson, President 
Finley Engineering Company, Inc.    CCG Consulting 
Slayton, MN 
(507) 777-2222 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 53 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

 

Proposal for Broadband Feasibility Study 
 
Our Approach 
Our understanding is that your primary interest is to explore the idea of building fiber and possibly fixed 
wireless to improve connectivity within parts of the county that are not adequately served and to make sure 
the county as a whole is served. 
 
Our basic approach to your interest is as follows: 

 Make an engineering estimate of the cost to build a fiber and/or fixed wireless network needed to 
reach all areas of the county that are not adequately served. We’ll work with you to understand the 
desired network options to evaluate and will create engineering designs that most efficiently reach 
those areas.  We will include the costs for all outside plant infrastructure as well as all inside 
plant/electronic equipment needed to provide the desired services.  In doing so we will also consider 
options that would let you most easily expand the network to more locations later if desired.  

 To the extent needed we will also estimate the cost of other assets that might be needed such as 
field huts or cabinets or other ancillary assets. 

 We will build a business plan that looks at the potential revenues and expenses associated with 
serving the community. 

 Finally, we will provide a written report that describes everything we’ve found. We’ll describe the 
assumptions we made and the results we found. We also make specific recommendations about the 
next steps that make sense after you’ve gotten our analysis.  

 We will also give you cost options for things like a market survey, which we often recommend doing 
after the above items have been completed and evaluated.  That way, if the above mentioned 
analysis shows no cost effective options are available, then you aren’t wasting money on a survey 
that won’t be needed. 

 

Engineering Analysis 
 
The engineering estimates will be done by Finley Engineering. When doing a feasibility business plan we 
recommend doing only very high level engineering with the goal of understanding the overall cost of building 
a broadband network. This sort of engineering is mostly done from our offices and involves only a few days 
of field work. In this high-level engineering our goal is to estimate a high network cost to make sure we have 
estimated sufficient dollars for the overall project. But we don’t want to estimate too high, so our goal is to 
get as close as we can to the cost of the network while still staying a little conservative. 
 
More engineering will be required if the project eventually moves forward and someone is going to build 
the network. But the goal at the feasibility stage of the project is to do just enough work to make a good 
estimate of the cost of the network without spending a lot of money doing detailed field engineering. 
 

Page 1

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 54 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

We have our own tables of construction costs in various parts of the country, include much of Minnesota 
since we do much engineering within the state.  We will also look at the other assets needed to build a 
network. This would include such things as the electronics needed to light the network, the drops and 
electronics needed to serve customers. 
 
As part of this study we will be talking with providers in and near the county to better understand their 
current network, their future plans, and try and gauge their level of interest in building out more of the 
county.  We will be evaluating options involving fiber and/or fixed wireless based on our conversations with 
the county and local providers. 
 
We always build in a construction contingency and we vary this between 10% and 15% percent of the project 
depending upon how good we feel about all of the assumptions used in the study. We can’t think of any 
time that we have had a project come in with higher construction costs than what we had projected, and in 
fact they are usually very close. 
 
We also do something in our business plans (described below) that many other consultants don’t do. We 
know that assets have to be replaced. For example, the core electronics will start needing upgrades or have 
to be replaced within 7-10 years. The fiber is likely to last until all of us are dead, but there will still have to 
be repairs made every year. We make sure that we build replacement costs into the business plan so that 
we can always make sure that you will have sufficient cash in future years to cover these routine and 
predictable events.  
 
Our proposed deliverables include: 

 We will estimate the cost for options of building a network to serve all unserved portions of the 
county.  The cost to build fiber and/or fixed wireless will be based upon recent actual construction 
costs from other projects in the area. In this estimate we will include a construction contingency.  

 We will look at the cost of electronics and other ancillary assets to provide the needed services to 
the county.   

 All of the above items will be presented in the form of a written report that will discuss our research, 
our findings and our rationale for making the choices we made.  

 

Market Assessment 
 
One important aspect of any feasibility study is understanding what people pay for their existing services 
today. Knowing that can help us to design proposed product prices that will make sense in your market. For 
example, you might hope that as a consequence of building fiber you could see prices for telecom products 
decrease 15% across the board from what people pay today. But until you test that kind of pricing in a 
business plan model, you don’t know if that can actually be done. And if a provider ends up later with a 
wholesale model where they sell fiber products to other service providers you will have almost no control 
over the prices they charge.  
 

Page 2

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 55 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

We think it’s a good idea to start today to gather information on market prices. It’s easy to think that markets 
everywhere pay the same prices, but we have not found that to be true. It used to be fairly easy to do this 
kind of research. Service providers would have most of their products and prices listed on the web. So, at 
least for residential products you could do basic web research to get the array of possible products and 
prices. The telephone company also had a tariff that listed all of their basic products. But those days are 
gone. For the most part, because they sell bundles, the cable companies do not put their prices on the web 
any longer, except maybe for their incredibly low-priced specials they use to lure new customers. And most 
of the products in the telephone company have been de-tariffed, meaning that the former products have 
been replaced by new products that are competitive and that can have different rates for different 
customers. 
 
We are left with only one method that seems to work for getting pricing for residents and businesses, which 
is to solicit copies of customer bills. We ask for your help to get sample bills from customers in the 
community. We would ask as part of this study that you put out the word that we need sample bills for the 
study to see what people are really paying for services in the community. We pledge to anybody who send 
in bills to keep the amount they pay confidential. In fact, they can feel free to black out or cut off any 
identifying information from the bills before they provide them to us. But even if they don’t remove their 
name, we would not reference any specific customer in our reports and we will destroy the bills once they 
have been analyzed and summarized. 
 
Our deliverables: 

 Through analyzing actual bills we will be able to talk about the products, prices and actual bundling 
discounts being sold in the County.  

We will summarize this as part of the written report on market research. 
 

Financial Business Plans 
 
CCG has prepared hundreds of financial business plans for our clients. We have studied and helped 
implement almost every conceivable type of competitive communications network and venture. Through 
years of this experience we have refined our business plan models such that they are thorough, focused and 
grounded in experience. Our business plans are not pie-in-the-sky since we have extensive experience of 
how companies function after they build the network.  
 
We will generate a separate financial business plan for each scenario. Each financial business plan will 
include in-depth detail relative to the organization, operating costs, overheads, equipment and materials 
required to operate the proposed business. This is a normal product of our business plan models due to the 
way we develop our plans. We build our business plans from the ‘bottom up’ and we can make detailed 
projections of the required staffing, capital and equipment needed to meet the plan objectives.  
 

Page 3

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 56 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

We will consider all of the cost of operating the network. For example, running this business might involve 
adding staff. We will talk with various providers and will discuss all of the potential costs of operating this 
expanded business so that we can understand any new incremental costs that someone might incur.  
 
If you, or someone else, are going to finance some or all of the fiber construction, we will make a realistic 
estimate of such financing. We normally build our models to coincide with the expected length of the debt 
just to be sure that there are not underlying assumptions that eventually mean trouble.  
 
One of the scenarios we will look at is to build a business model looking at the possibility of someday building 
fiber-to-the-premise to all residents. This will answer the big question of whether this is something the 
county might ever consider – a decision that’s hard to talk about without some starting basis, which this 
estimate will provide to you.   
 
All of CCG’s business plans provide monthly level of detail for the first two-years of operation. Subsequent 
years are provided on an annual basis. Our models are so detailed and easy to use that many of our clients 
often utilize our models as budgetary and ongoing management control tools. Because our models are 
detailed and accurate they can be used with little modification when it comes time to raise money.  
 
We don’t create only one financial forecast. We understand there are a number of important variables that 
can affect the outcome of a fiber business. We will work with you identify those variables that we will want 
to ‘kick the tire on’. This might lead us to looking at scenarios that vary the number of customers, that vary 
the broadband products being offered, that vary the prices, or that vary other key assumptions like the 
interest rate on debt. We want to make sure that you and others fully understand the range of possible 
results someone might see if entering this new business line.   
 
We also will provide copies of our Excel spreadsheets for the financial projections. There are numerous other 
consultants who will not do this.  
 
Our proposed deliverables: 

 We will work with the County to figure out the specific scenarios to be modeled;  
 CCG will prepare a base financial model that will incorporate the Finley engineering estimates. We 

will layer on expected costs to operate the business and will generate an estimate of the potential 
revenues someone might be able to earn; 

 We will look at multiple scenarios and will do a sensitivity analysis on the key variables to make sure 
that we fully understand how the new business might function;   

 We will prepare a high-level estimate of providing fiber to the whole county. We will study other 
technology alternatives that are considered by Finley; 

 We will provide a list of the detailed assumptions of operating costs, overheads, staffing and other 
costs of operating a broadband network. The model will cover the period of anticipated financing. 
The model will show monthly detail for the first two years with annual data after that. The model 
will include an estimated cost of debt; 

Page 4

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 57 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

 The models include standard financial statements including an income statement, a balance sheet 
and a statement of cash flow. 

 
How to Fund Your Project 
 
CCG has a lot of experience in helping clients obtain financing. We have helped numerous municipalities 
through the bond process to fund fiber projects. We have obtained numerous loans and loan guarantees 
from the federal government and from commercial banks. We’ve helped a number of projects find grant 
money to pay for portions of fiber projects. It is getting harder and harder to fund projects from just one 
revenue source, and so we will also compile a description of all of the funding sources we have seen other 
entities use to help pay for fiber projects.  
 
The CCG deliverable for this section of the report will be a written report that talks about all of the creative 
ways that similar projects have gotten funded, including discussing how structuring the business as a public 
private partnership might change the way it can be funded.   
 
Discussion with Potential Partners 
 
We think it’s important to discuss the goals for the project with all of the telcos, cable companies, electric 
companies, ISPs and other key players in and near the county as part of doing this study. We want to know 
if they have resources that might benefit your project and also understand at a very high level if they might 
be a good candidate for you as a partner.  
 
We propose to talk to the carriers and other related entities. We would guarantee them that these 
conversations are confidential and we would not be publishing their intentions in a public report. But we 
want to understand up-front if the kind of public private partnership we might model is possible through 
one of the most likely partners. 
 

Market Survey 
 
This step is recommended only if needed and after the other steps in this proposal are completed.  As we 
discussed with your team earlier, it no longer makes any sense to do a telephone survey if it doesn’t include 
cellphones.  It may be that the only solution that makes sense for this situation is to conduct a local survey. 
That would mean that you will be the one coordinating people to ask questions to people.  
 
But it’s very important that any survey be done in such a way as to satisfy Blandin today and bankers in the 
future that you conducted the survey in a statistically valid manner so that the results are meaningful.  
 
So the proposal is to help you design and conduct the study in a proper manner. Specifically that means the 
following: 
 

Page 5

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 58 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

1) We will provide a draft of survey questions. It is very important that survey questions are not 
written in such a manner as to bias respondents towards a certain response. We have conducted 
hundreds of surveys and we will prepare a list of questions that we think work well. You are free to 
modify that questions but we want to work with you to make sure that any changes don’t add bias. 
One thing we will also help you with is to not let the survey get too long. There is a phenomenon 
called survey fatigue which says that a lot of people will stop taking a survey if it’s too long. We will 
make sure that the overall survey is reasonable.  

2) We will work with you to understand the demographics of the area to be covered by the study and 
to determine how many completed surveys are needed to be statistically significant. Ideally we will 
shoot for getting an accuracy of 95% plus or minus 5%. What that means is that if you were to 
survey 100% of the people in the study area that you would expected to be within that range of 
accuracy through the sample. That is a high degree of accuracy and is what is used for most 
business and political surveys.  

3) We will have to devise a plan to make sure that the sample is random. Once you know who is going 
to be conducting the surveys, we will help you then select respondents in a way that is both 
random but that also represents the demographics of the County.  

4) Once the survey is completed, we will analyze the responses and tell you what the responses mean 
statistically (meaning how much faith you can put in interpreting the answers). Our price includes 
having us transcribe the surveys into a spreadsheet and thus our price would be a little lower if you 
do that locally.  

 
Our specific deliverable: 

 A set of survey questions that will get the answers you are looking for. We will work with you to 
make any changes you might want to make to the questions.  

 We will help you determine the sample size and the number of completed surveys that are needed 
to achieve the 95% accuracy level.  

 
We will summarize the completed surveys and prepare a detailed report that will summarize what they 
surveys tell you, plus we will compare these results to what we have found in other communities. 
 

Overall Report 
 
Much of what we have discussed earlier lends itself to a written report. So we propose preparing an overall 
written report that summarizes everything we did in preparing the study. We will describe the pertinent 
facts that we used in preparing our studies along with a description of major assumptions we’ve made.  
 
We will then describe the outputs we produce. We will describe the results of our engineering analysis. We 
will also analyze and describe the results of the financial business plans. We will make sure that the report 
is jargon-free so that the report can be understood by non-technical people.  
 

Page 6

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 59 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

Finally, we will make specific recommendations. We will tell you what we found and how you might best use 
it. We will tell you what options we think are realistic for moving forward and we will outline the next steps 
you ought to take after getting our study.  
 
The pricing proposed here covers the basic topics associated with our proposal. We’ll discuss the 
engineering, the market research and the assumptions and outputs of the financial forecasts. 
 

Presentations 
We are proposing the following meetings as part of this proposal: 

 An initial trip by Finley Engineering to gather the data needed to prepare the engineering cost 
estimates. 

 CCG Consulting will have a conference call with certain members of your team early in the process. 
 Finley Engineering and CCG Consulting will both visit to present the results of our analysis. 

 

Schedule 
Assuming that we can obtain the raw data we need, then the tasks proposed generally take around three 
months from the time that our engineers first visit.  
 

Experience of Similar Scope 
As we discussed earlier, some of the studies that Finley and CCG have completed together in the last 2 to 3 
years includes the Minnesota counties of Nobles, Murray, Pipestone, Lyon, Lincoln, Yellow Medicine, 
Chippewa, Traverse, Otter Tail, and Pope.  Finley and CCG have also done studies together for cities such as 
Cortez, CO, Davis, CA, and Idaho Falls, ID, and we are currently working on a study for the City of Buffalo, 
MN. 
 
We can provide numerous references upon request.  
  

Things You Might Want to Consider After this Study 
The study we have proposed is not the end of the process. The study will tell you if it’s financially viable to 
build a broadband network to serve parts of the county. If it looks economically viable there is then a lot 
more work to do, and below we list a few of the most important steps that are usually taken after the 
feasibility study.  These are steps that may be taken by the county or other provider(s), or a combination 
based on partnerships depending on what approach is taken. 
 

How to Fund the Expansion 
CCG is an expert in finding funding for fiber projects and this is a major advantage that we bring as a 
consultant. We have seen numerous fiber projects stall due to not being able to figure out how to fund it. 
We bring a lot of experience in funding fiber projects in creative ways and we find that creativity is often 
needed these days to make this work. Both firms bring a lot of experience in finding grant financing.  
 

Page 7

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 60 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

Market Opportunities and Threats 
Another question I am always asked is. “What can go wrong”? CCG has over 850 clients in the telecom 
business and over the years we have seen some of them make major mistakes or run into market 
competition they didn’t expect. So we can tell you the likely threats you will see in the market place including 
a discussion of the reaction you are going to see from the incumbent providers.   
 

Building the Network 
Finley Engineering can help you through the complicated process of doing the final engineering and then 
choosing the right construction company and vendors to build your network. We have a lot of experience in 
writing RFPs to select vendors and can help you make sure that the network is built on time and on budget.  
 
CCG has a lot of experience in implementing new telecom business ventures. We can help you with all of 
the non-engineering tasks such as project management, product development and pricing, a sales and 
marketing plan, and the many other steps required to launch a new business line. 
 

Why Hire Finley and CCG? 
 
We think there are a number of good reasons to consider our firms: 

 We are two of the most experienced companies in the country.  

 Both companies have been named multiple times by Broadband Properties Magazine as among the 

top 100 broadband companies in the country.  

 Finley and CCG have worked together and completed 13 feasibility studies in the last two to three 

years.  Cities involved have ranged in population sizes from 9,000 to 60,000. 

 Both firms have extensive experience in implementing fiber projects. Some consultants only do 

feasibility studies, but our biggest value to you is that we know how fiber businesses really get 

constructed and how they operate in the real world.  

 Finley’s Minnesota office is located only 2.5 hours away from the County. 

 Finley and CCG each have broad experience working with many types of federal and state loan/grant 

programs such as RUS, FCC, NTIA, and several states. CCG has extensive experience with obtaining 

bond, bank and other kinds of financing.  

 Both of our firms have extensive experience working in Minnesota.   

 
 
 

Page 8

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 61 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

Our Proposed Pricing 
 
Following is a list of our proposed prices for the tasks proposed above. Unless noted below, each quoted fee 
is a ‘do-not-exceed- fee and is the most that we will bill you for any of the tasks. However, should we require 
less effort than we have estimated we would bill less than these estimated amounts. We also want you to 
know that we do not feel constrained by these fees and that we will expend whatever time is needed to 
complete the project to your satisfaction. You will not get a degraded product due to us exceeding our 
required time estimates. We do want to caution, however, that we very regularly put in more hours than 
we have budgeted and so we generally do not come in under budget for many items on our proposed list.  
 
We will bill on a monthly basis as work is performed. We do not require a retainer. 

 
Pricing 

Engineering Analysis           $19,000 
Determine the cost of constructing the fiber and/or fixed wireless and other assets needed 
to implement the scenarios proposed in this study.  
 

Market Assessment           $  3,500 
Talk to providers and businesses in the county to understand their existing broadband 
networks and needs, and their interest in considering a new fiber network.  
 

Financial Business Plans          $12,000 
Produce detailed financial models that look at both the potential revenues and all expected 
costs associated with implementing a broadband business. We will study the scenarios 
described in the proposal.   
 

Written Report           $  5,000 
Produce a written report that describes all of the work product produced in this study.                
 

Final Results Presentations          $  2,500 
Present the final results in whatever setting is desired by the City.                                     
 

Travel Expenses           $  3,500  
This is an estimate of travel expenses for the project. We bill actual expenses as incurred, 
without markup.  

Total Price                                   $45,500 

 
Optional Market Survey Assistance (if the County performs the survey)    $  2,500 
Assist the county in developing a valid survey.                

Total Price (including optional market survey assistance)                             $48,000 

Page 9

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 62 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

 

Finley Engineering Background and Experience 
Finley Engineering Company, Inc. (Finley), offers many professional services listed below, in the fields of 
broadband/telecommunications, electric power transmission and distribution, and related industries. Both 
the management and professional staff of Finley have extensive experience with services to cities, counties, 
cooperatives, public and private companies of all sizes, as well as other types of government agencies. 
 
Finley has about 200 employees, 12 licensed professional engineers (licensed in over 40 states), and was 
established in 1953 in Lamar, Missouri. In addition to this office, Finley has permanent offices located in 
Altoona, WI (established in 1960); Bismarck, ND (established in 1966); Slayton, MN (established in 1971); 
Des Moines, IA (establish in 1994); Minneapolis, MN (established in 2002); Lexington, KY (acquired in 2007); 
Springfield, IL (acquired in 2010); and Kansas City, MO (established in 2013). 
 
Our domestic and international experience has impacted many hundreds of thousands of subscribers and 
involved over 1,000,000 miles of copper, coaxial, and fiber optic telecommunications cable, and a variety of 
network and switching installations. This represents a significant presence in the entire telecommunications 
and broadband industries. Finley has completed hundreds of FTTP (fiber-to-the-premises) projects and over 
7,000 miles of intercity fiber projects, and various types of metropolitan projects in Phoenix, Pittsburgh, 
Seattle, Houston, Kansas City, Detroit, Chicago, Buffalo, Portland, Minneapolis, St. Paul, and others. That 
said, most of our work is located in smaller rural communities where it is difficult to find providers for 
adequate broadband services. 
 
Our ‘Promise’, as mentioned on our website, focuses on ‘Integrity into Everything’. We know that Finley 
customers may be heading into uncharted waters with their new projects, and that they are counting on us 
to live out that value of integrity.   
 
Customer service has played a major role in Finley’s success. In fact Finley is acknowledged as a 
communications industry leader with recognition from numerous national organizations for Finley’s 
contribution to the industry. For the past 10 consecutive years, Broadband Properties Magazine has named 
Finley to its Top 100 Broadband Companies in America. Additionally, an independent client satisfaction 
survey revealed that Finley’s client satisfaction ratings have climbed to 95% which is among the highest in 
the industry. 
 
A few of the many services offered by Finley include: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 10

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 63 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

 
Broadband System Engineering 

 Engineering Services 
 Technical Evaluations 
 Feasibility Studies  
 Project Management 
 Planning, Design Cost Estimates and Economic 

Selection Studies 
 Specifications and Contracts for Central Office 

and Carrier Equipment 
 Outside Plant Engineering 
 Outside Plant Specifications and Contracts 
 Construction Management and Inspection 
 Acceptance Tests and Work Order Inspection 
 Appraisals, Inventories, Traffic Studies, CPR 

Records, & Manual & Computerized Records  
Environmental Services 

 Feasibility Studies 
 Agency and Public Scoping 
 Route Analysis and Selection 
 Environmental Assessments 
 Environmental Impact Studies 
 BLM and USFS Permit Applications 
 USCOE Section 10 Permits 
 USCOE Section 404 Permits 
 Resource Analysis 
 Wetland Studies & Delineations 
 Threatened & Endangered Species 
 Biological Clearances 
 Cultural Resource Inventories 
 Permitting and Licensing 
 Construction Compliance 

Wireless Broadband 
 Engineering Services 
 Technical Evaluations 
 Feasibility Studies 
 Project Management 
 Site Evaluation and Selection 
 Zoning Planning and Permitting 
 Lease Reviews and Site Acquisition 
 Site Design 
 Construction Management and Inspection 

Right-of-Way (ROW) Services 
 Title Research and Analysis 
 Document Preparation 
 ROW Negotiations & Acquisition 
 Highway and Street Occupancy Permitting 

 Conditional Use & Building Permits 
 Zoning Changes and Permits 
 Construction Liaison 
 Damage Claims and Settlements 
 Condemnation 

CATV Engineering 
 Engineering Services 
 Technical Evaluations 
 Feasibility Studies  
 Project Management 
 Planning and Cost Estimates 
 Make-Ready Estimates 
 Outside Plant and Field Engineering 
 Plans, Specifications, and Material Lists 
 Headend Towers and Antennae Programming 
 Construction Management and Inspection 

Surveying and Mapping 
 GPS Control Surveys  
 Route Location and Profile Surveys 
 Cadastral Retracement & Property Surveys 
 Topographic Surveys 
 CAD Mapping 
 Construction Surveys and Staking 
 River Crossing & Hydrographic Surveys 
 ALTA Surveys 
 Aerial Photography and Digital 

Orthophotography 
 GIS Data Collection 
 ROW Acquisition Maps and Legal Descriptions 

IP Services 
 Network design consulting services 
 Network Management 
 Network Troubleshooting 
 Project Management 
 Critical Network Infrastructure Security 
 Enterprise Services 

Electrical Power Engineering Services 
 Rates and Cost of Service 
 Outside Plant Engineering 
 Long Range Planning 
 ROW Clearing Coordination 
 Feasibility Studies and Reports 
 Construction Plans and Specifications 
 Transmission Line Design 
 Distribution Line Design 
 Project Management

 

Page 11

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 64 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

In addition to the services listed above, Finley manages bid processes, performs the role of liaison with 
vendors, contractors, and other firms, full services for loan/grant applications & projects, complete design 
and construction oversight of OSP and central office and remote hut facilities as well as primary and backup 
power facilities. 
 

CCG CONSULTING Background and Experience 
CCG has assisted numerous other communities with similar studies and we can bring this experience to help 
you find the right solution. CCG is the largest telecom consultant in the country in terms of clients and has 
served over 850 broadband providers. Among those clients are over 200 municipal clients, but also includes 
numerous commercial broadband providers. Our work in the commercial sector has taught us to have a very 
strong focus on profitability and efficiency which we think is essential for municipal projects.  
 
CCG is a full-service telecom consulting firm, meaning that we can help with a broad array of services that 
are needed by broadband providers. CCG has one of the broadest technical knowledge bases in the industry 
because we work with almost every kind of network possible including fiber, copper, HFC/coaxial, and a 
wide variety of wireless technologies. We work with clients that serve farms and rural areas and other clients 
who work in NFL cities. This wide range of client work means that we have to stay current and on the cutting 
edge of technology to anticipate the needs of tomorrow. Our company has been noted for several years by 
Broadband Properties Magazine as one of the Top 100 Broadband Companies in America 
 
Doug Dawson is the founder and President of CCG and started the firm in 1997. The company was founded 
as a C corporation in 1997 and was subsequently reorganized to an LLC. Our website is 
http://www.ccgcomm.com. 
 
Following is a brief summary of CCG’s key accomplishments and successes. 

 CCG has worked with over 850 clients on all aspects of communications. We have worked in every 
state in the country. Our clients include cities and municipalities, independent telephone companies, 
CLECs, ISPs, electric cooperatives and wireless carriers. We have assisted many of the largest and 
most successful municipal clients get into the telecom business including places like Lafayette, LA, 
Chattanooga, TN and Bristol, VA. We have over 200 municipal clients.  

 CCG has completed over 250 infrastructure analyses, business plans, and feasibility studies for clients 
throughout the United States.  

 CCG has a high percentage of retained client business, even though our work is very project related 
– that is, we complete specific projects for clients with no guarantee of an ongoing relationship. For 
example, over 80% of our clients in 2016 were also clients in 2017. This reflects the fact that our 
clients continue to come back to us for operational support as they implement our 
recommendations. 

 
 

Page 12

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 65 / 112



LE SUEUR COUNTY, MN  
Broadband Feasibility Study Proposal 

November 29, 2018 

 
   

CCG specializes in the following areas. CCG is a full-service telecom consulting firm and we help clients with 
almost every aspect of providing any or all of the triple play services. We specialize in helping businesses to 
get started, to open new markets and to stay profitable once in the business. Some of our areas of expertise 
include: 
 

Planning Services - Strategic Planning, Policy Development, Business Plan and Feasibility Studies, 
Assistance with Financing 
 
Regulatory Services - Interconnection Agreements, Certification Assistance, Regulatory Compliance, 
Tariff Creation 
 

 Marketing Services - New Product Development and Implementation, Market Research, Marketing Plan 
Development, Development of Pricing, Packaging and Promotional Programs  

 
Implementation Services - Timelines and Gantt Charts, Customer Service and Billing Platforms, Hiring 
and Training, Setting Sales Quotas and Sales Training, Number Portability, Finding Vendors 
  
Engineering Services - Facilities-based Network Design and Optimization, Design Central Office Facilities, 
Network Interconnections, Sizing, Ordering and Implementing the Network, Network Migration 
Strategies, Detailed Customized RFPs, Vendor Selection 
   

 Contract Negotiations - Contract Mediation and Dispute Resolution, Local Exchange, Utility and 
Municipal Agreements, Right of Way and Pole Attachment Fees 
   

 Partnership Opportunities - Financing Solutions, Strategic Alliances, Third Party Relationships, 
Outsourcing of Non-strategic Competencies 

 
Doug Dawson of CCG writes a daily telecom blog for small carriers at http://potsandpansbyccg.com. We 
suggest that you look at the blog and you will see a sample of the wide range of topics covered. Doug looks 
not only at the current market, but is focused on where the industry is trending might in the next five to ten 
years. We don’t think there are many firms that spend us much effort as we do in looking forward.  
 
Doug is also an advisor to Yavapai Regional Capital, an infrastructure merchant bank that helps to fund public 
private partnerships. YRC’s web site is: http://www.yavapairegionalcapital.com/ 
 

Page 13

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 66 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 67 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 68 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 69 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 70 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 71 / 112



State of Minnesota
Department of Public Safety

Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management
445 Minnesota Street, Suite 223

St. Paul, MN  55101-6223

Hazard Mitigation Assistance Agreement for 
Counties utilizing HSEM Plan Update Consultant

Overview
Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Hazard Mitigation Assistance grants are administered 
in the State of Minnesota by the Minnesota Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management 
(HSEM). Mitigation Plans form the foundation for a community's long-term strategy to reduce disaster 
losses and break the cycle of disaster damage, reconstruction, and repeated damage. The planning process 
is as important as the plan itself. It creates a framework for risk-based decision making to reduce damages 
to lives, property, and the economy from future disasters. Hazard mitigation is any sustained action taken 
to reduce or eliminate long-term risk to people and their property from natural hazards.  

This is a cost share grant program with FEMA paying 75% of all eligible costs and the local community 
being responsible for the remaining 25% of the costs. Eligible applicants include local (county/city/tribal) 
governments.  

Responsibilities
The State will be hiring consultants and is responsible for 75% of costs of the plan. The jurisdiction is 
responsible for collaborating, coordinating and communicating with HSEM staff and contractor to assist 
in the development of a FEMA approved and adopted Hazard Mitigation Plan update.   

1. Resolution
To ensure your contribution in the HMP Update process, we request your jurisdiction pass a 
resolution indicating the desire to participate in this program.

2. Letter of Commitment of Funds
As part of the documentation submitted to FEMA, a Letter of Commitment of Funds for the 25% local 
match of in-kind services or cash is required. If you wish to provide in-kind match, instead of cash 
match, (or a combination of the two) please fill out attached budget sheet and provide required 
documentation. 

County Staff – Provide County staff (base plus fringe) breakout for project manager, staff support, 
subcommittee reps, technical experts, etc. provided by payroll system.

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 72 / 112



Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Process
The mitigation plan update process is a coordinated effort typically lead by the county Emergency 
Management Director (EMD) and other staff. The Scope of Work (SOW) includes steps that lead to a 
FEMA approved multijurisdictional mitigation plan in normally 18 months. The SOW includes:

 Planning Process: A contract between the county and the state is approved. The county EMD 
coordinates with its consultant to develop a schedule for team and public meetings. The county assists 
with acquiring data for the plan update and coordinates with other county agencies to participate in the 
plan update process. This step provides the scope for the entire update process until the plan is sent for 
review. The EMD will be responsible for submitting quarterly narrative reports detailing progress and 
delays. The county and its consultant will also track local match to be used for financial reporting. 
Also, team members are responsible for coordinating reviews with their staff and elected officials.

 Risk Assessment: The EMD and mitigation team will review the hazards from the initial plan and 
determine which ones will continue to be profiled. New hazards may be added. All hazards will 
conform to the terminology in the State Mitigation Plan. The consultant will then develop the Risk 
and Vulnerability assessment based on the hazards. The EMD will participate in any surveys and 
reviews of the draft risk assessment and give input to the consultant.

 Mitigation Actions: The mitigation actions are based on hazards in the risk assessment and the 
actions found in the initial plan. The consult will facilitate this review with the mitigation team and 
include new mitigation action.

 Draft Plan and Public Review: The consultant completes the first draft of the mitigation plan. A 
public notice is given for jurisdictions to participate in meetings or give electronic input to the plan. 
This input is documented and factored into the plan. The EMD will follow local policy as far as 
having the county board and other elected/appointed bodies review the plan.

 Review: After all input is reviewed then the plan is sent to the state mitigation staff for review. The 
consultant will also provide a matrix to show how the plan meets requirements. The coordinated 
review between state mitigation staff and FEMA may take up to 90 days. Revisions may extend the 
time to have the plan meet requirements.

 Plan Adoption and Approval: FEMA will send a letter stating that the plan meets requirements and 
that it needs to be adopted to become approved. The EMD coordinates an adoption of the plan by 
resolution of the county board. The resolution and final copy of the plan is sent to state mitigation 
staff. The EMD will obtain resolutions adopting the plan from the other jurisdictions (cities) 
participating in the update process and send to state mitigation staff. FEMA will then approve those 
jurisdictions. 

 Project Closeout: FEMA approval of the county marks the completion of the project. EMDs and 
counties will reconcile accounts for local match and provide any documentation. 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 73 / 112



Hazard Mitigation Plan Update Application

County Name
Le Sueur

Contact Name Title Agency

Ann M. Traxler Director Le Sueur County Emergency 
Management

City, State, Zip Code Email Phone
Le Center, MN 56057 atraxler@co.le-sueur.mn.us 507-380-0048  office:507-357-8394

Alternate Contact Name Title Email/phone

Tamara Stewig Deputy tstewig@co.le-sueur.mn.us 
612-790-9568 office:507-357-8395

Match and/or In-Kind Budget (Estimate – update based on actual)

Item Item Description Units Unit of 
Measurement  Cost  Total 

1 County Staff* 180 hours 33.5 $6,030.00 
2 City Staff* 50 hours 27.58 $1,379.00 

3 Public 
Participation 50 hours 27.58 $1,379.00 

4 Cash     

     $8,788.00 
 Total Match Must be at least $8,250  
*Any city or county staff funded by 100% EMPG or other Federal grant programs are not eligible to use 
salary.

County Staff – Provide County staff (base plus fringe) breakout for project manager, staff support, 
technical experts, etc. provided by payroll system.

City Staff - Use the standard rate $27.58 (or document actual rates, if available)

Public Participation - Use the standard Minnesota 2017 volunteer rate of $27.58. This may be updated 
for 2018. https://independentsector.org/resource/vovt_details/

Certification:

Darrell Pettis  County Administrator
Printed name  Signature Title Date

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 74 / 112

mailto:atraxler@co.le-sueur.mn.us
mailto:tstewig@co.le-sueur.mn.us
https://independentsector.org/resource/vovt_details/


RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING PARTICIPATION IN PLANNING PROCESS
AND EXECUTION OF AGREEMENT

WHEREAS, the County of Le Sueur is participating in a hazard mitigation planning process as established under 
the Disaster Mitigation Act of 2000; and

WHEREAS, the Act establishes a framework for the development of a multi- jurisdictional hazard mitigation plan; and

WHEREAS, the Act as part of the planning process requires public involvement and local coordination among 
neighboring local units of government and business; and

WHEREAS, the county will lead the planning effort with the assistance of consultants and State of Minnesota 
mitigation staff.

WHEREAS, the county will provide staff and resources from departments related to mitigation, will facilitate 
participation of jurisdiction within the county, and provide quarterly reporting on plan progress.

WHEREAS, the plan must include a risk assessment including past hazards, hazards that threaten the county. maps 
of hazards, an estimate of structures at risk, estimate of potential dollar losses for each hazard, a general description 
of land uses and future development trends; and

WHEREAS, the plan must include a mitigation strategy including goals and objectives and an action plan 
identifying specific mitigation projects and costs; and

WHEREAS, the plan must include a maintenance or implementation process including plan updates, integration of 
plan into other planning documents and how the county will maintain public participation and coordination; and

WHEREAS, the draft plan will be shared with the State of Minnesota and the Federal Emergency Management 
Agency (FEMA) for coordination of state and federal review and comment on the draft; and 

WHEREAS, approval of the all hazard mitigation plan will make the county eligible to receive Hazard Mitigation 
Assistance grants as they become available; and 

NOW THEREFORE, Be it resolved that Le Sueur County Emergency Management will enter into

an agreement with the Division of Homeland Security and Emergency Management in the Minnesota 

Department of Public Safety for the program entitled Hazard Mitigation Assistance (HMA) for the update of the

Le Sueur County Hazard Mitigation plan. Ann M. Traxler- Director of Le Sueur County Emergency 
Management is hereby authorized to execute and sign such agreements and any amendments hereto as are 
necessary to implement the plan on behalf of Le Sueur County.

            

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 75 / 112



I certify that the above resolution was adopted by the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners of 
               

Le Sueur County on ______________________________.
(Date)

SIGNED: WITNESSETH:

_________________________________________
(Signature)

_________________________________________
(Signature)

Le Sueur County Board Chairman Le Sueur County Administrator

_________________________________________
(Date)

_________________________________________
(Date)

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 76 / 112



Letter of Commitment of Funds

Le Sueur County
88 S. Park Avenue

Le Center, MN 56057

As a potential sub-grantee in a Hazard Mitigation Assistance (HMA) Program, Le Sueur County hereby 
commits the matching funds necessary for the proposed Le Sueur County Hazard Mitigation Plan 
update.

After FEMA approval and during project implementation, Le Sueur County acknowledges that it is 
responsible for providing a minimum of 25% of all eligible project costs or a minimum of $8,250 in local 
matching funds to comply with all grant cost share requirements.  

As signed, we understand the responsibilities of a sub-grantee participating in the HMA program and 
hereby authorize the use of these non-federal funds for this proposed project.

_____________________________________ ___________________
Le Sueur County Board Chairman Date

_____________________________________ ___________________
Le Sueur County Administrator Date

_____________________________________ ___________________
Director of Le Sueur County Emergency Management Date

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 77 / 112



End of the Year Board Action Items: 
 

 
On motion by                             seconded by                             and approved, the Board 
adopted the following resolution setting the 2019 mileage reimbursement rate: 
 

BE IT RESOLVED: That the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners hereby 
sets the mileage reimbursement for Le Sueur County Employees to be the Federal 
IRS mileage at 58 cents per mile and 2 cents per mile additional for those Water 
Patrol Officers while pulling a water patrol boat for the year 2019. 

 
On motion by                             , seconded by                             and approved the Board 
adopted the 2019 Per Diem Rate: 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED: That the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners hereby
 sets the 2019 Per Diem at $75.00 per half day and $100.00 per full day, effective 
 January 1, 2019 for all per diems. 
 
On motion by                             seconded by                             and approved, the Board 
set the 2019 Per Diem Eligible Committees as follows: 
 

2019 PER DIEM ELIGIBLE COMMITTEES 
 

Personnel Policy Committee, Scenic Byway Alliance, Family Services Collaborative, 
Labor Management, Historical Society, Fair Board, PIC, Law Library, Airport 
Commissions, Extension, MVCOG, Le Sueur/Waseca Regional Library, Road & Bridge, 
Transportation Alliance, Annual Township Meeting, all AMC Policy Committees, AMC, 
NACO, Le Sueur - Waseca Community Health Board, Planning & Zoning matters, Tri-
County Solid Waste, Cannon River Matters,  MSSA, Mental Health Advisory, Immtrack 
Joint Powers Board, Region 9, MVAC, EMS Joint Powers, HRA, Multi-County HRA, 
Region 9, Le Sueur County Aging and Transit, MV River Watershed Committee, Ney 
Foundation, Parks, Le Sueur – Scott Joint Drainage Authorities, Le Sueur – Rice Joint 
Drainage Authorities, Le Sueur – Blue Earth Joint Drainage Authorities, Public Health 
Emergency Preparedness Advisory Committee, Public Health Advisory Committee, 
LCDS Inc., Regional Radio Board, GBERBA, Middle MN River Watershed, SHIP 
(Statewide Health Improvement Program), Aquatic Invasive Species (AIS) Committee, 
Safety Committee, Veterans Services Drivers, West Jefferson Sewer District, TRUE 
Transit, Human Resources Committee, 1 Watershed 1 Plan, South Central Transit JPA, 
Parks Board and any other newly created committees recognized by the County Board in 
the year 2019. 
 
  

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 78 / 112



On motion by                             , seconded by                             and approved, the 
following resolution was adopted: 
 
 BE IT RESOLVED: that all members of the County Board, the Human Services   

Director, the County Administrator, and the VSO are hereby designated as 
Association of Minnesota Counties Delegates for Le Sueur County in 2019. 

 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that all officials and their delegates are hereby
 authorized to attend all meetings called by their respective associations, regional 
 and national, including regular meetings called during the year 2019, and 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: that all out-of-state meetings must be 
requested in person by the Department Head before the County Board. 

 
 
On motion by                             , seconded by                             and approved, the Board 
established the 2019 annual base salary of the Le Sueur County Board of Commissioners 
to be $30,250.18 plus cafeteria benefits as negotiated by the Union Contracts. 
 
 
On motion by                             , seconded by                             and approved, the Board 
adopted the following resolution setting the 2019 Le Sueur County hours of operation: 
 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED: That all employees except for 
public safety and the county highway department employees shall have their 
normal work week at 39.5 hours in 2019.  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED: That the normal hours of operation for 

the County Courthouse and Planning and Zoning Office shall be 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 
p.m. on Mondays thru Thursday and 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Friday for 2019. 

 
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 79 / 112



 

Future Meetings 
December 2018 – February 2019 

 

December 2018 
Tuesday, December 18   Board Meeting, 4:30 p.m.  
    *User Fees Public Hearing, 5:50 p.m. 

*Budget/Levy Public Hearing, 6:00 p.m.  
 

Thursday, December 20  Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services  

Monday, December 24   Offices Close at noon for Christmas  

Tuesday, December 25   Offices Closed for Christmas – (No Board Meeting)  

 

January 2019 
Tuesday, January 1   Offices Closed for New Year’s Day – (No Board Meeting)  

Tuesday, January 8   Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. – Board Reorganization 

Thursday, January 10  Le Sueur-Rice JD5 Public Hearing reconvenes and Special Meeting for Le 
Sueur – Rice JD63 at 9:00 a.m. at the Le Sueur County Courthouse in the 
Commissioner’s Room  

P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services  

Tuesday, January 15   Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.  

Thursday, January 17   Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services  

Monday, January 21   Offices Closed for Martin Luther King Jr. Day   

Tuesday, January 22   Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. 
    *County Ditches Work Session with SWCD staff 
 

 

February 2019 
Tuesday, February 5  Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. 
    *CHB Meeting in Waterville at 1:00 p.m. 
 
Thursday, February 14   P&Z Meeting, 7:00 p.m. at Environmental Services  
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 80 / 112



Monday, February 18  Offices Closed for President’s Day 
 
Tuesday, February 19   Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. 
 
Thursday, February 21   Board of Adjustment Meeting, 3:00 p.m. at Environmental Services  
 
Tuesday, February 26   Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. 
 

 

 

 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 81 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 9

Commissioner Committee Reports

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 82 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 10

5:50 p.m. Public Hearing on Proposed Changes to User Fees for 2019 

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 83 / 112



Department Fee Current 2018 Proposed 2019
County Ag Inspector Pesticide Exams new $20.00 per exam session

Public Health Skilled Nurse $135 per visit 170.00 per visit*
Public Health Home Health Aide $38.00 per hour $58.00 per hour*

Public Health Therapy (PT, OT, ST Medicare only) new $240.00 per visit
Public Health Homemaker (Waiver/grant only) new $27.00 per hour
Public Health Influenza vaccine $35.00 $40.00

Human Services Electric Home Monitoring Full cost of service Sliding fee based on income

Human Services Supervised Visits Full cost of service Sliding fee based on income

Human Services
Change from Urine Analysis Testing to 

Substance Use Analysis Testing Full cost of service Sliding fee based on income

Human Services Childcare Background Study
$100.00 - Max per State 

Statute Delete Fee
Recorder Mail Fee $10.00 $15.00

Environmental Services Ordinance Amendment new $2,000.00
Environmental Services Septic- Type V (Existing) new $400.00

Commercial Property Per Unit
Value $0-$1,000,000 3

Value $1,000,001, and over 7.5
Apartments 1
Schools 5
Government 0.5
Hospitals and Nursing Home 28
Nursing Home (Tax Exempt) 0.5
Churches and Halls 0.5
Dwellings - homestead and seasonal 
recreational 1
Resort and Campgrounds

Sites 0-100 0.25
Sites 101 and over 0.33

Commercial Property Per Unit
Value  $0-$500,000 3

Value $500,001-$1,000,000 5
Value $1,000,001, and over 10

Apartments (per unit) 1
Schools 5
Government 0.5
Hospitals 28
Nursing Home (per room) 0.5
Churches and Halls 0.5
Dwellings - residential and seasonal 
recreational 1
Mobile Home Park (per site) 1

Resort and Campgrounds (per entity) 4
1 Unit = $15.00 (Effective as of 1-1-2015)
Summary of Proposed Changes for 2019
1. Commercial Properties: split $0 to $1,000,000 assessed value into two catergories ($0 to $500,000 and
$500,001 to $1,000,000); new Per Unit charge for $500,001 to $1,000,000 and increased Per Unit charge for
$1,000,001 and over.
2. Added Mobile Home Park
3. Resort and Campgrounds: revised rate to Per Entity, change from Per Site.

* sliding fee scale available for clients without insurance or not eligible for grant/waiver.

Existing Rate Schedule - Le Sueur County Solid Waste Fees 

Proposed 2019 Rate Schedule - Le Sueur County Solid Waste Fees  

Proposed User Fee Changes for 2019

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 84 / 112



Application Acceptance Fee $35.00 each application (effective 4/2/18)

$100 set up fee
$0.03 per label

$100 set up fee
$25 per taxing district

$0.05 per record or $50 per hour
Tax Info – whole county $750 
CAMA Info – whole county $750 
Print out report $0.25 per page

NSF fee $30.00 

Publishing Fee for delinquent tax $60.00 

Admin fee for forfeiture $150.00 
Parcel search fee $2.00 
On sale Liquor License $1,500.00 
Off sale Liquor License $200.00 
Sunday Liquor License $200.00 
Wine/strong beer License $400.00 
3.2 Beer Licenses on-sale $20.00 
3.2 Beer Licenses off-sale $10.00 
Tobacco License $100.00 
Fireworks $15.00 
Auctioneer License $20.00 
Auditor’s Tax Certificate
          No taxpayers listed $50.00 
          10 largest taxpayers listed $100.00 
          25 largest taxpayers listed $150.00 
Fast Track (License Bureau) $20.00 
On sale Liquor License (Selling strong 
beer only $750.00

Minimum for each ditch lien entry
$10.00

Ditch lien entries due in one 
installment $100.00 or less

2018 USER FEES (APPROVED 12/19/17)

ASSESSOR

Labels

Excel Reports

AUDITOR-TREASURER

ADMINISTRATION
PASSPORTS

ELECTIONS

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 85 / 112



1-50 Registered Voters $100.00/yearly
51-500 Registered Voters $600.00/yearly
501-1000 Registered Voters $900.00/yearly

1001 and up Registered Voters $1,200.00/yearly

Reimburse Le Sueur County for  
mailing ballots

Postage Cost

Variance $600.00 
Cluster Fee for Variances $600.00 + $200.00 per lot 
     Special Meeting $1,200.00 
Conditional Use Permit $750.00 
Rezoning $750.00 
Preliminary $500.00 + $25 per lot
Final $1,000.00 
   Special Meeting $2,000.00 

After the fact penalty
$1500.00 or 10% of finished value of 

improvement, whichever is greater

Residential Dwellings $3/$1000 of value Min   $100.00
Accessory Structure $2/$1000 of value Min   $ 50.00
Commercial Structure $5/$1000 of value Min   $150.00
Signs $2/$1000 of value Min   $ 50.00

911 Addressing Fees
Trip Charge $60.00
Sign Post $20.00
Sign Blade & Bolts $15.00
Sign Stickers $5.00 

Zoning Ordinance $45.00 
Copies per page $0.25 
Fax or email fee $5.00 + $0.25 per page
Filing fee $46.00 

Type I $300.00 
Type II $200.00 
Type II (floodplain area) $400.00 
Type III $300.00 

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES FEES

SEPTIC

STRUCTURES

OTHER FEES

Non-Mail Ballot Precincts

Mail Ballot Precincts

HEARINGS

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 86 / 112



Type III (flow equalization or reduced 
size)

$400.00 

Type IV $500.00 
Cluster<2,500 gpd $1000 + 200.00 per household
Cluster 2,500 to 4,999 gpd $2000 + 200.00 per household
Cluster 5,000 to 10,000 gpd $5000 + 200.00 per household
Commercial Double
Not ready for Inspection/Soils $50.00 
After the fact permits Double the fee

Parcel Based GIS Information
$0.05 per parcel or $50.00 per hour, 

whichever is greater
Printer Map Product – Color $1.00 per page
Printer Map Product – Plotter HP (34 
x 44)

$10.00 per page

Custom maps, Product Analysis, 
Computer Processing

$50.00 per hour

Land Information GeoDatabase $2,500.00 

Adult/Child Corporate License $300.00 – $500.00 Max per State Statute

Chemical Dependency Assessment $225.00 

Childcare Background Study $100.00 – Max per State Statute
Childcare License $50/1 year; $100/2 year License
Child/Juvenile Placement Costs Sliding fee based on income
Detoxification Service Sliding fee based on income
Electric Home Monitoring Full Cost of service
Group Therapy Sliding fee based on income
In-Home Family Therapy Sliding fee based on income
Out Patient Therapy Sliding fee based on income
Supervised Visits Full Cost of Service
Urine Analysis Testing Full Cost of Service

Head Quarter Bldg $75.00 per day
Picnic Shelter $50.00 per day
Electric Site - Camping $25.00 per night
Non Electric Site $15.00 per night
Senior Citizen Discount (62 +) $20.00 per night (Sun-Thurs)

Camping $10.00 per night

Barn Rental $75.00 per day

GIS

LAKE WASHINGTON

CLEAR LAKE PARK

RICHTER WOODS PARK

PARKS

HUMAN SERVICES

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 87 / 112



Damage/Clean Up Deposit for Richter 
Woods Barn Rental

$75.00 

Skilled Nurse $135.00 per visit *
Home Health Aide $38.00 per hour*

Pregnancy Test $8.00
Early Childhood Screening $35.00 

VFC Vaccinations  Admin Fee(Vaccine 
is free) $20.00 

VFC Vaccinations - Admin Fee 
Alternative Schedule (Vaccine is free)

1 injection $20.00
2 injections $27.00
3 injections $34.00
4 injections $41.00

Hepatitis B $60.00
Tdap $54.00
Mantoux $20.00
Influenza $35.00 

Base Fee, then add category below $165.00 

Category 1 $110.00 
Category 2 $245.00 
Category 3 $385.00 
Additional Food Service $175.00 
HACCP Verification $175.00 
Alcohol Fees, only one category 
applies

Base Fee $165.00 
Number of units x $11.00 
*Max $1,100.00

Special Event $55.00 
Food Cart $85.00 
Mobile Food Unit $85.00 

COMMUNITY HEALTH: FEE SCHEDULE

PUBLIC HEALTH                                                             
SERVICES

*Sliding fee scale available for clients without insurance or not eligible for 

INMMUNIZATIONS

*Immunizations are billed to insurance whenever possible

Food & Beverage Service Establishment Fees

TEMPORARY FOOD FEES

LODGING FEES

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 88 / 112



Seasonal Temporary Food Stand $85.00 
Seasonal Permanent Food Stand $85.00 
Late penalty for any of the above $60.00 

Base Fee $165.00 
*Plus number of sites x $5.00 

Base Fee per number of sites
24 sites or less $55.00 
25-99 sites $230.00 

100 or more sites $330.00 

*Plus number of sites x $5.00 

Base Fee $150.00 
*Plus number of sites x $1.00 

Base Fee $165.00 
Public swimming pool $355.00 

Additional pool (each) $200.00 

Spa pool $200.00 
Additional spa (each) $110.00 

Individual water and/or sewer $60.00 

Base Fee $165.00 
Category 2 $245.00 
Additional Inspections $250.00 
Concession Stand $0 or TBT

Up to 99 campers $325.00 
100-199 campers $550.00 
$200 or more campers $750.00 

New Construction $150.00 
Sealing $0.00 

Special Event RCA $360.00 
Late fee if operating up to 30 days 
w/o license

$120.00 

POOLS

MHP Fees

RCA Fees

Special Event RCA/MHP

LATE FEES

$360.00 
Additional late fee if operating more 
than 30 days w/o license

MISC FEES

SCHOOLS

YOUTH CAMPS

WELLS

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 89 / 112



Re-Inspection fee equal to the

base fee for 3rd or 4th visit in less
than 12 months for failure to
comply with corrective order

Category 1 $400.00 

Category 2 $450.00 
Category 3 $500.00 
Additional Food $250.00 
Food cart $250.00 
Mobile Food Unit $350.00 
Seasonal permanent food stand $250.00 
Seasonal temporary food stand $250.00 
HACCP $500.00 

Less than 25 units $375.00 
25 to less than 100 units $400.00 
100 units or more $500.00 

Less than 5 cabins $350.00 
5 to less than 10 cabins $400.00 
10 cabins or more $450.00 

Initial construction of less than 25 
sites

$375.00 

Initial construction of 25 to 99 sites $400.00 

Initial construction of 100 or more 
sites

$500.00 

Up to 99 Campers $375.00 
100 - 199 Campers $400.00 
200 or more $500.00 

Category 1 $300.00 
Category 2 $350.00 
Category 3 $400.00 
HACCP N/A

NEW CONSTRUCTION
FOOD

Equal to base fee

LODGING

YOUTH CAMP

CABINS

REMODEL
FOOD

MHP/RCA/Special Event Camping

COMMUNITY HEALTH: PLAN REVIEW FEE SCHEDULE

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 90 / 112



Additional food service $250.00 
Food cart $250.00 
Seasonal permanent food stand $250.00 
Seasonal temporary food stand $250.00 
Mobile food unit $250.00 

Less than 25 units $250.00 
25 to less than 100 units $300.00 
100 units or more $450.00 
CABINS
Less than 5 cabins $250.00 
5 to less than 10 cabins $350.00 
10 cabins or more $400.00 

Expansion of less than 25 sites $250.00 
Expansion of 25 to 99 sites $300.00 
Expansion of 100 or more sites $450.00 
YOUTH CAMPS
Up to 99 campers $250.00 
100 - 199 Campers $300.00 
200 or more $450.00

Document $46.00 
Plat/Condominium $56.00 
Attested Copy $2.00 each
More than 4 reference #’s $10.00 each add’l reference #
Well Certificate $50.00 

Document $46.00 

Plat/Condominium/Registered Land 
Survey

$56.00 

Attested Copy $2.00 each
More than 4 reference #’s $10.00 each add’l reference #

Memorials on multiple certificates $20.00 per certificate

Residue Certificate $40.00 
Well Certificate $50.00 
Condition of Register $50.00 
Copy of Certificate Title $3.00 

$26.00 for one
$19.00 each additional

LODGING

MHP/RCA/Special Event Camping/Youth Camp

RECORDER
ABSTRACT

TORRENS

VITALS  

Birth Certificate

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 91 / 112



$13.00 for one
$6.00 each additional

Marriage Certificate $9.00 
$115.00 without classes

$40.00 with 12 hours classes
Re-Issue Marriage Document, 
Applicant Error

$10.00 

Marriage Waivers $25.00 
Genealogy Searches $20.00 per hour
Vitals Report $15.00 

$75.00 New or Recertification
$60.00 Update Continuation

Abstract Entries $5.00 per entry
O & E Report $140.00 
40 Year Tract Search $250.00
Tract Search $20.00 per hour
Exhibits $1.00 per page
Name Search $6.00 
District Judgment Search $5.00 
Special Assessments $5.00 
Certified Mail $10.00 
Expedite Fee $25.00 

Ordination $20.00 
Notary/Notary Amendment $20.00 
Notary Certification $5.00 

$50.00 set up fee

$50.00 Monthly fee

$2.00 per viewed document
Passport Photos $12.00 
Plat Review $50.00 
Reports $15.00 + $1.00 per page
After Hours Emergency $10.00 

Plain Copies $1.00 per page
Copies from Books $3.00 
Certified Copies $10.00 
Plotter Sized Plat Copies $10.00 per page + $5.00 to certify

Fax/Email Fee $5.00 + $1.00 per page

Marriage License

SHERIFF PUBLIC FEES
GUN PERMITS

Death Certificate

COPIES  

LandShark Subscription

Abstract Certification

ABSTRACTING SERVICES

MISCELLANEOUS SERVICES

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 92 / 112



Conceal/Carry Permit $100.00 
Renewal $75.00 
Replacement/Change of info $10.00 
Burn Permit No charge

Incident Report Copy
No charge for initial report, $0.25 per page 

for additional copies
Accident Report Copy No charge
Photographs $2.00 per colored copy - 2 on a page

CD Copy (containing audio, video, 
photographs and/or documents)

$20.00 

Clerical Query/Research $20.00/hour, 15 minutes minimum
Fingerprints $10.00 (1 or 2 cards)

Summons/Complaint, subpoena, 
notices, orders, writ of execution, 
petitions, foreclosure notices, posting 
of notice, etc.

$70.00 Unlimited attempts or # of 
occupants at same address

Writ of Recovery in Eviction $70.00 
Deputy time for property removal 
standby in eviction

$70.00 

Sheriff Sales $70.00 
Redemption Certificate $250.00 
Mechanics Lien Sales/Certificates $70.00
Notice of Intent to Redeem $100.00 

Writs of Execution Commission 6%

SHERIFF CIVIL FEES

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 93 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 11

6:00 p.m. 2019 Budget - Levy Public Hearing 

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 94 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 95 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 96 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 97 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 98 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 99 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 100 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 101 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 102 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 103 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 104 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 105 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 106 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 107 / 112



Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 108 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 12

6:15 p.m. Approve 2019 Levy

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 109 / 112



2019 FINAL LEVY 
 

FUND                                         TAXES    PROGRAM AID        TOTAL       
Revenue 10,362,736 571,455 9,791,281 
Road & Bridge 3,189,350 571,455 2,617,895 
SS & PA 2,482,629  2,482,629 
PA & GA 1,091,800  1,091,800 
Fair 35,000  35,000 
Building 210,000  210,000 
Extension Services 213,824  213,824 
Park 249,634  249,634 
Bonded Indebtedness 3,676,339  3,676,339 
Victim Witness 23,619  23,619 
Env Services – P & Z 239,142  239,142 
Env Services – Water Plan 19,760  19,760 
Env Services – ISTS 65,627  65,627 
    
TOTAL 21,859,460 1,142,910 20,716,550 

 
  
 
 2019 FINAL LEVY     $  20,716,550 
  
 2018 FINAL LEVY         $  19,379,373 
 
 INCREASE IN LEVY       $    1,337,177  
 
 INCREASE OF                 6.9%  
 
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 110 / 112



Le Sueur County, MN
Tuesday, December 18, 2018

Board Meeting

Item 13

6:20 p.m. Approve 2019 Budget

Staff Contact: 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 111 / 112



 
FINAL 2019 

RECAP OF EXPENDITURES 
LE SUEUR COUNTY 

                                                         
   USE OF   

FUND TAXES OTHER 
REVENUES 

FUND BALANCE TOTAL  

REVENUE 10,362,736 4,721,596 891,500 15,975,832  
ROAD & BRIDGE 3,189,350 25,449,055  28,638,405  

SS & PA 2,482,629 2,630,519  5,113,148  
PA & GA 1,091,800 1,612,250  2,704,050  

FAIR (600) 35,000 0  35,000  
BUILDING (111) 210,000 0  210,000  

EXT SERVICES (601) 213,824 3,560  217,384  
PARK (525) 249,634 62,763  312,397  

BONDED INDEBT 3,676,339 44,000 -739,077 2,981,262  
VICTIM WITNESS 23,619 80,200  103,819  

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES 324,529 5,649,247 429,547 6,403,323  
DRUG TASK FORCE 0 43,000 -20,238 22,762  
CAP IMPROVEMENT 0 10,000,000 833,430 10,833,430  

TOTAL 21,859,460 50,296,190 1,395,162 73,550,812  
 

Le Sueur County Board Meeting - 12/18/2018 Page 112 / 112


